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message from The CHAnCeLLor

the University of Houston system, as a public 
institution, must account fully for the dollars we 
receive as investments in the educational future 
and the economic progress of the people of 
Houston and texas.  on the following pages, we 
are pleased to present the UH system’s Annual 
Financial report for Fiscal year 2011 as a way to 
provide our many constituencies with clear and 
transparent assurances of such accountability.

As the only metropolitan university system 
in texas, we serve a region of the state that 
accounts for almost a quarter of its population 
and almost a third of its gross product.  the 
UH system has a $3.1 billion yearly economic 
impact on the region, and provides the 
intellectual and human capital necessary for 
Houston and texas to grow and prosper.  

our 67,000 students receive a world-class 
education at our four universities (University 
of Houston, UH-Clear Lake, UH-Downtown, 
UH-Victoria), at the University of Houston 
sugar Land Campus, at the UH-Clear Lake 
Pearland Campus, and at teaching centers 
in northwest Houston, Cinco ranch, and the 
texas Medical Center.

reflecting the UH system’s top institutional 
priority, the pictorial theme of this year ’s 
Annual Financial report is “student access 
and success.”  Whether offering multiple 
modes and locations to receive instruction, 
portability of coursework between universities, 
affordable tuition and generous financial aid 
programs, or the opportunity to study and live 
in multicultural environments that prepare our 

students to succeed in the modern world, 
the UH system component universities work 
diligently and creatively to ensure student 
access and success.

the UH system is proud of our remarkable 
past, marked with great scholarly, research, 
community service, and academic 
achievements, and proud of an even 
brighter future as we continue our focused 
and determined drive to achieve increased 
national recognition for the University of 
Houston, the UH system’s flagship university, 
and the highest levels of accomplishment for 
UH-Clear Lake, UH-Downtown, and UH-Victoria 
in the respective categories.

We look forward to the 2011-2012 academic 
year and the 2012 fiscal year with great 
expectations and the promise of additional 
successes in our intuitional quest of providing 
student access and success.

renu KhaTor 
CHAnCeLLor, UH systeM  
PresiDent, UniVersity oF HoUston
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message from The exeCUtiVe ViCe CHAnCeLLor

on behalf of the University of Houston system, 
i am pleased to submit to you our annual 
financial report for the fiscal year ended 
August 31, 2011. Within the contents of this 
presentation you will have the opportunity to 
review our financial statements and examine 
the results of financial activities and operations 
within the UH system.

the data and graphics included in the 
accompanying narrative are designed to 
enable analysis of significant financial events 
and accomplishments. our faculty, staff, and 
administrators are dedicated and committed 
to our responsibility to provide our students and 
our community a world class level of instruction, 
research, and community support.

this report contains financial statements 
that have been prepared in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting 
principles as prescribed by the governmental 
Accounting standards board. responsibility 
for the accuracy of the information and 
for the completeness and fairness of its 
presentation, including all disclosures, rests 
with the management of the UH system. We 
believe our system of internal controls is sound 
and sufficient, thereby ensuring the system’s 
accountability to the public.

i join with all the UH system’s administrators, 
as well as our academic and administrative 
management, in reaffirming our resolve to 
provide sound leadership for the system through 
the exercise of prudent financial direction 
and decisions and budgetary discipline. 
During 2011 universities and higher education 
institutions have contended with financial 
stresses on a scale unprecedented in recent 

U.s. economic history. We have engaged in a 
rigorous self examination of resources, goals, 
and priorities, with the objectives of maintaining 
a stable financial environment within our 
academic units. At the same time, we have 
pursued opportunities for growth and enhanced 
delivery of services.

throughout the 2011 fiscal year, the UH 
system prudently allocated resources for the 
continuance of three system-wide objectives: 1) 
national Competitiveness - remaining known as 
one of the best metropolitan higher education 
systems in the nation; 2) student success - 
providing access to the system’s instructional 
and research resources to the citizens of 
the greater Houston region and the state 
and providing the means to enable student 
success; and 3) Community Advancement - 
engaging with the community to provide an 
engine for social and economic advancement. 
Achievements at all campuses within the 
system have been strong, as indicated by 
increases during 2011 in our performance 
measures for enrollment, degrees awarded, 
research expenditures, and annual giving. 
With improving performance on most of our 
key progress measures, the system is poised 
for continued success in the coming years. to 
harness this potential, UH system universities 
have engaged in strategic planning activities, 
which have resulted in establishing five and ten 
year targets for enrollment and research that 
correspond to campus mission statements.

carl carlucci
exeCUtiVe ViCe CHAnCeLLor
For ADMinistrAtion AnD FinAnCe
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financial HigHLigHts
UniVersity oF HoUston systeM - Assets 
As of August 31,2011

2011 % 

Cash & investments $  1,084,387,775 47

Capital Assets 964,013,755 41

receivables 147,564,022 6

Appropriations 89,218,141 4

inventories & other Assets 48,550,041 2

ToTal asseTs $  2,333,733,734 100
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financial HigHLigHts
UniVersity oF HoUston systeM - LiAbiLities 
For the year ended August 31, 2011

2011 % 

bonds Payable $ 674,970,493 66

Deferred revenue 181,832,741 18

Payables & Accrued Liabilities 127,496,476 13

Accrued Compensable Absences Payable 23,932,068 2

Funds Held for others 9,506,475 1

ToTal liabiliTies $ 1,017,738,253 100
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financial HigHLigHts
UniVersity oF HoUston systeM - oPerAting reVenUes 
For the year ended August 31, 2011

2011 % 

tuition & Fees, net of Discounts $ 388,544,719 62

Auxiliary enterprise-Pledged 67,442,598 11

Federal grant revenues 65,793,464 11

state grant revenue 47,785,217 7

sales of other goods & services-Pledged  31,271,755 5

Local & Private Awards 18,876,209 3

other operating revenues 397,990 1

ToTal operaTing revenues $ 620,111,952 100
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financial HigHLigHts
UniVersity oF HoUston systeM - oPerAting exPenses nAtUrAL CLAssiFiCAtion 
For the year ended August 31, 2011

2011 % 

salaries & benefits $ 623,472,021 61

supplies, office operations, travel 107,040,323 10

scholarships 102,013,345 10

Depreciation 68,166,442 7

Communication & Utilities  44,989,108 5

other operating expenses 40,726,280 4

Financing & Legal  24,394,618 2

repairs & Maintenance 14,073,497 1

ToTal operaTing expenses (naTural) $ 1,024,875,634 100
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financial HigHLigHts
UniVersity oF HoUston systeM - totAL reVenUe 
For the year ended August 31, 2011

2011 % 

operaTing revenues

tuition & Fees, net of Discounts $ 388,544,719 31

sales of goods & services 99,112,343 8

Federal Contracts & grants 65,793,464 5

All other Contracts & grants 66,661,426 5

non-operaTing revenues

Legislative sources 273,572,801 22

Federal revenue 123,028,160 10

other revenue 93,814,085 7

gifts 83,887,077 7

other Appropriations 50,929,094 4

endowment Additions 15,855,061 1

ToTal revenues $ 1,261,198,230 100
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financial HigHLigHts
UniVersity oF HoUston systeM - totAL exPenses 
For the year ended August 31, 2011

2011 % 

operaTing expenses

salaries & benefits $ 623,472,021 55

office operations & supplies 166,102,929 15

scholarships 102,013,345 9

Depreciation & Amortization 68,166,442 6

other operating expenses 37,786,420 3

Financing & Legal 24,394,618 2

Pass through expenses 2,939,859 1

non-operaTing expenses

non-operating expenses 71,037,988 6

interest expense 31,833,559 3

ToTal expenses $ 1,127,747,181 100



12

financial stAteMents
UniVersity oF HoUston systeM - stAteMent oF net Assets 
As of August 31, 2011

asseTs 2011 2010
Current Assets

Cash & Cash equivalents $ 218,706,890 $ 170,601,429

short-term investments 149,170,220 195,383,126

restricted Cash & Cash equivalents (11,615,602) 16,329,448

Loans & Contracts 7,502,187 15,503,818

Legislative Appropriations 89,218,141 108,068,914

receivables 121,424,935 93,350,241

inventories 2,079,897 2,208,028

Deferred Charges 46,470,144 49,309,449

ToTal currenT asseTs $ 622,956,812 $ 650,754,453

non-Current Assets

restricted Cash & Cash equivalents $ 116,564,993 $ 90,186,098

Loans & other receivables 18,636,900 24,516,231

investments 611,561,274 553,197,848

Capital Assets,  
non-Depreciable/non-Amortizable 285,959,162 199,721,462

Capital Assets, Amortizable/Depreciable 1,553,293,163 1,471,695,695

Accumulated Amortization/Depreciation (875,238,570) (811,578,997)

ToTal non-currenT asseTs $ 1,710,776,922 $ 1,527,738,337

ToTal asseTs $ 2,333,733,734 $ 2,178,492,790

liabiliTies 2011 2010
Current LiAbiLities

Payables $ 77,662,089 $ 74,197,131 

Deferred revenues 181,832,741 172,822,420 

notes & Loans Payable 42,141,000 10,000,000

employees’ Compensable Leave 11,470,640 10,963,773 

revenue bonds Payable 28,523,915 27,383,915 

Claims & Judgments Payable 307,667 387,792

Capital Lease obligations 366,160 —

Funds Held for others 9,506,475 12,843,326 

ToTal currenT liabiliTies $ 351,810,687 $ 308,598,357 

non-Current LiAbiLities

Claims & Judgments Payable $ 12,742 $ 14,443 

employees’ Compensable Leave 12,461,428 12,166,550 

revenue bonds Payable 646,446,578 674,970,492

Capital Lease obligations 7,006,818 $ —

ToTal non-currenT liabiliTies $ 665,927,566 $ 687,151,485 

ToTal liabiliTies $ 1,017,738,253 $ 995,749,842 

neT asseTs
invested in Capital Assets,  
net of related Debt $ 406,009,374 $ 348,346,604 

restricted, Debt retirement 17,363,063 20,455,746 

restricted, Capital Projects 5,732,691 4,984,732 

restricted, endowment Funds 400,780,862 353,068,486 

restricted, other 121,091,734 121,233,332 

Unrestricted 365,017,757 334,654,048

ToTal neT asseTs $ 1,315,995,481 $ 1,182,742,948 
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financial stAteMents
UniVersity oF HoUston systeM - stAteMent oF reVenUes, exPenses & CHAnges in net Assets 
For the year ended August 31, 2011

operaTing revenues 2011 2010
tuition & Fees, net of Discounts $ 388,544,719 $ 335,644,516 

sales of goods & services 98,714,353 81,407,095 

Federal revenue 65,793,464 50,562,211 

state grant revenue 47,785,217 40,509,952 

other grants & Contracts 19,274,199 22,889,937 

ToTal operaTing revenues $ 620,111,952 $ 531,013,711 

operaTing expenses
instruction $ 286,300,388 $ 278,812,621 

research 98,159,064 99,682,859 

Public service 43,985,006 42,901,388 

Academic support 159,673,768 155,661,094 

student services 36,224,776 36,581,748 

institutional support 96,146,853 87,585,998 

operation & Maintenance of Plant 53,055,146 47,493,338 

scholarships & Fellowships 92,975,555 63,260,383 

Auxiliary enterprises 90,188,636 81,739,725 

Depreciation & Amortization 68,166,442 57,342,724 

ToTal operaTing expenses $ 1,024,875,634 $ 951,061,878 

operaTing income (loss) $ (404,763,682) $ (420,048,167)

non-operaTing revenues (expenses) 2011 2010
Legislative revenue $ 273,572,801 $ 281,926,449 

gifts 83,887,077 56,567,581 

Federal revenue non-operating 123,028,160 123,399,498

investment income 34,793,389 1,402,484 

interest expense & Fiscal Changes (31,833,559) (28,998,530)

net increase (Decrease) in Fair Value  
of investments 29,125,898 38,837,982

other non-operating revenues (expenses) (35,845,584) 34,991,425 

ToTal non-operaTing revenues 
(expenses)

 
$

 
476,728,182 

 
$ 508,126,889 

income (loss) before oTher 
revenues, expenses, gains,  
losses & Transfers

 
 
$ 71,964,500 

 
 
$ 88,078,722 

oTher revenues, expenses, gains, losses & Transfers
Capital Appropriation  
(Higher education Assistance Funds)

 
$

 
 50,929,094

 
$

 
53,332,099 

Additions to Permanent &  
term endowments 15,855,061 5,418,936

transfers-out (5,277,326) (4,237,468)

Legislative Appropriations Lapsed (20,280) 1,087,464 

ToTal oTher revenues, expenses, 
gains, losses & Transfers

 
$ 61,486,549 

 
$ 55,601,031

change in neT asseTs $ 133,451,049 $ 143,679,753 

net Assets beginning 1,182,742,948 1,038,988,675 

restatements (198,516) 74,520 

neT asseTs beginning, as resTaTed $ 1,182,544,432 $ 1,039,063,195 

neT asseTs, ending $ 1,315,995,481 $ 1,182,742,948 
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financial stAteMents
UniVersity oF HoUston systeM - stAteMent oF CAsH FLoWs 
For the year ended August 31, 2011

cash flows from operaTing acTiviTies 2011 2010
Proceeds received from  
students & Customers

 
$

 
435,601,704 

 
$

 
358,055,399 

Proceeds from Loan Programs 180,019,620 105,660,221 

Proceeds from other revenues 171,954,391 142,304,305 

Payments to suppliers for  
goods & services

 
(210,490,915)

 
(219,293,211)

Payments for employees (619,780,802) (597,192,395)

Payments for Loans Provided (170,641,189) (106,330,183)

Payments for other expenses (121,716,964) (84,543,847)

neT cash provided (used)  
bY operaTing acTiviTies

 
$ (335,054,155)

 
$ (401,339,711)

cash flows from non-capiTal financing acTiviTies
Proceeds from state Appropriations $ 292,380,206 $ 261,627,471 

Proceeds from gifts 84,947,599 53,923,835 

Proceeds from endowments 13,338,938 5,125,852 

Proceeds of transfers from other Funds 54,502,124 50,616,497 

Proceeds from other revenues 132,128,249 124,338,274 

Payments for other Uses (37,887,194) (22,393,857)

neT cash provided  
bY non-capiTal financing acTiviTies

 
$ 539,409,922 

 
$ 473,238,072 

cash flows from capiTal & relaTed financing acTiviTies 
Proceeds from Capital  
Financing Activities

 
$ 155,676,085 

 
$ 256,363,029 

Payments for Additions to Capital Assets (167,798,058) (150,535,382)

Payments for Capital Lease (396,892) —

Payments of Principal & interest  
on Debt issuance (169,987,869) (122,117,309)

neT cash provided (used) bY capiTal 
& relaTed financing acTiviTies

 
$ (182,506,734)

 
$ (16,289,662)

cash flows from invesTing acTiviTies 2011 2010
Proceeds from interest &  
investment income

 
$

 
540,471,115 

 
$

 
313,528,337 

Payments to Acquire investments (515,780,843) (346,364,154)

neT cash provided  
bY invesTing acTiviTies

 
$ 24,690,272 

 
$ (32,835,817)

increase (decrease)  
in cash & cash equivalenTs $ 46,539,305 $ 22,772,882 

cash & cash equivalenTs, sepTember 1 $ 277,116,975 $ 254,344,093 

cash & cash equivalenTs, augusT 31 $ 323,656,280 $ 277,116,975 

reconciliaTion of operaTing income (loss) To neT cash
Provided (used) by oPerAting ACtivities

operaTing income (loss) $ (404,763,682) $ (420,048,167)

adjusTmenTs To reconcile operaTing income To neT cash
Provided (used) by oPerAting ACtivities

Amortization & Depreciation $ 68,166,442 $ 57,342,724 

bad Debt expense — 12,771 

Classification Differences 9,462,703 (715,856)

ChAnges in Assets & LiAbiLities

(increase) Decrease in receivables & Loans (22,660,017) (40,535,130)

(increase) Decrease in inventories 128,131 330,119 

(increase) Decrease in other Assets (1,682,767) 1,484,934 

(increase) Decrease in Prepaid expenses 3,672,372 6,508,914 

(increase) Decrease in Payables 552,530 (11,197,275)

(increase) Decrease in Deferred income 9,010,321 4,351,503 

(increase) Decrease in other Liabilities 3,059,812 1,125,752 

ToTal adjusTmenTs $ 69,709,527 $ 18,708,456 

neT cash provided bY  
operaTing acTiviTies $ (335,054,155) $ (401,339,711)
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financial stAteMents
UniVersity oF HoUston systeM - MAtrix oF oPerAting exPenses 
As of August 31, 2011

expenses bY naTural classificaTion 2011 2010
Cost of goods sold $ 2,523,773 $ 3,175,555 

salaries & Wages 508,937,364 491,283,365 

Payroll related Costs 114,534,657 107,134,959 

Professional Fees & services 49,179,037 44,605,103 

Federal Pass-through expenses 2,747,182 3,177,670 

state Pass-through expenses 192,677   —

travel 12,466,154 14,033,314 

Materials & supplies 38,500,482 42,357,217 

Communication & Utilities 44,989,108 43,845,070 

repairs & Maintenance 14,073,497 13,189,183 

rentals & Leases 20,864,963 16,931,469 

Printing & reproduction 4,370,877 5,023,036 

Depreciation & Amortization 68,166,442 57,342,724 

interest 1,954,078 541,098 

scholarships 102,013,345 67,666,890 

Claims & Losses 1,575,577 1,487,240 

other operating expenses 37,786,421 39,267,985 

ToTal operaTing expenses (naTural) $ 1,024,875,634 $ 951,061,878 

expenses bY funcTional classificaTion 2011 2010
instruction $ 286,300,388 $ 278,812,621 

research 98,159,064 99,682,859 

Public service 43,985,006 42,901,388 

Academic support 159,673,768 155,661,094 

student services 36,224,776 36,581,748 

institutional support 96,146,853 87,585,998 

operation & Maintenance of Plant 53,055,146 47,493,338 

scholarships & Fellowships 92,975,555 63,260,383 

Auxiliary enterprises 90,188,636 81,739,725 

Depreciation & Amortization 68,166,442 57,342,724 

ToTal expenses bY  
expendiTure funcTion $ 1,024,875,634 $ 951,061,878 
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inTroducTion
the following Management’s Discussion  
and Analysis (MD&A) section of the  
University of Houston system’s Annual  
Financial report has been prepared  
to provide an overview of the activities  
and the financial performance of the  
University of Houston system (the system)  
for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2011.  
this presentation is intended to offer  
a summary of significant current year  
activities, resulting changes, and currently 
known economic conditions and facts.  
this analysis should be read in  
conjunction with the system’s basic  
financial statements and the notes to  
the statements.

bacKground
the University of Houston system (UHs),  
serving the nation’s fourth largest city  
and its metropolitan area, as well as the  
upper texas gulf Coast region, is part of  
the state-supported system of higher  
education in texas. UHs is the region’s  
largest provider of comprehensive 
(baccalaureate to doctorate) higher  
education services. the system is  
comprised of four universities and a  
supporting system Administration. the four 
universities are University of Houston (UH), 
University of Houston – Clear Lake (UHCL), 
University of Houston – Downtown (UHD),  
and University of Houston – Victoria (UHV);  
all of which are located along the texas  
gulf Coast. the University of Houston,  
the flagship institution of the system, is  
its principal doctoral degree-granting  

institution, and is a comprehensive  
research university. the University of Houston – 
Clear Lake is an upper-level/master ’s  
university located in southeast Houston  
with close ties to nAsA’s Johnson space  
Center and regional community colleges. 
University of Houston – Downtown, Houston’s 
second largest university after UH and the 
most ethnically diverse university in the state, 
is a predominantly undergraduate institution 
with a limited but growing number of master ’s 
programs. University of Houston – Victoria is  
an undergraduate and master ’s-level  
institution that, for the first time in fall 2010, 
began enrolling freshmen and sophomores  
as it seeks to become a destination university 
in the Coastal bend region of texas. UHV and 
UHs also have a large presence in southwest 
and west Houston, reaching many students in 
Houston and beyond through extensive online 
programs. the UH system Administration is 
responsible for coordinating the operations 
of the universities, as well as providing select 
centralized services. Among universities 
nationwide, the UH system remains a model  
of diversity and a reflection of the city and 
region it serves.

During the three recent fiscal years, the  
system’s Chancellor and board of regents  
have led a comprehensive strategic  
planning process through which new  
mission statements, goals, principles,  
and accountability measures have  
been developed for the system and its 
universities. in addition, the universities  
have developed enrollment and research 
projections for the current decade and  

managemenT’s DisCUssion & AnALysis
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are in the process of developing  
academic and facilities master plans.  
Upon completion, these plans will identify  
the programs, faculty, staff, and  
infrastructure needed to achieve  
enrollment and research projections,  
as well as the resources needed to  
accomplish them. the UHs universities  
are also working collaboratively on four  
system-wide initiatives – international  
education; health sciences research  
and education; pathways for faculty 
collaboration among institutions; and  
pathways for student transfer among  
institutions. Central to all of these planning 
activities are the UH system’s primary 
goals – student access and success, 
national competitiveness, and community 
advancement – all of which further  
texas’s goals for higher education, as  
well as the social and economic  
well-being and development of the  
Houston metropolitan area. UH system 
performance with respect to measures  
on its progress and goals objectives  
has been strong. the system has improved 
performance on most of its key progress 
measures this fiscal year and is positioned  
for continued success in the future.  
examples of UHs accomplishments  
include: total enrollment increased to  
63,846; total degrees awarded increased  
to 12,664; total research expenditures 
increased to $122 million; and total annual 
giving increased to $107 million.

overview of The financial sTaTemenTs 
the financial statements for fiscal year  
2011 have been prepared in accordance  
with accounting pronouncements  

promulgated by the governmental  
Accounting standards board (gAsb).  
these include statement no. 34, basic  
Financial statements – and Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis – for state  
and Local governments, and gAsb  
statement no. 35, basic Financial  
statements – and Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis – for Public Colleges and 
Universities. the requirements focus on  
the preparation of financial statements  
that present financial operations in the 
aggregate, rather than accountability  
by individual fund group. these standards  
were adopted by the state of texas and  
the system during the 2002 fiscal year.  
All financial statements for fiscal years  
2002 through 2011 have been prepared  
in accordance with these rules. Additionally,  
these statements conform to reporting 
requirements of the texas Comptroller of  
Public Accounts and to guidelines issued  
by the national Association of College  
and University business officers.

governmental Accounting standards  
board statement no. 35 requires the  
system to include three financial statements  
in the annual financial report. they are  
(1) the statement of net Assets, (2) the 
statement of revenues, expenses and  
Changes in net Assets, and (3) the  
statement of Cash Flows. the information 
contained in the financial statements of  
the University of Houston system is part  
of and included in the state of texas 
Comprehensive Annual Financial report.  
the financial statements of the system  
are presented for the fiscal year ended  
August 31, 2011, with financial data for  
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the fiscal year ended August 31, 2010, 
provided for comparative purposes. Prior  
year totals have been reclassified,  
when necessary, to reflect current year  
changes in reporting procedures and to 
enhance comparability of reported totals.

the format of the texas statewide financial 
statements presents a comprehensive 
perspective of the state’s financial  
activities. the state’s activities are divided  
into three types for presentation in the  
primary financial statements. they are 
governmental Activities, business-type  
Activities, and Component Units. the  
financial operations of the University of  
Houston system are considered a  
business-type activity because the  
system’s universities charge a fee, in  

the form of tuition, to customers in order  
to pay for a significant percentage of the  
cost of the services provided. Under this 
classification, the system’s financial  
statements conform to the guidelines  
and presentation formats prescribed for 
Proprietary Funds.

sTaTemenT of neT asseTs 
the first schedule presented is the statement  
of net Assets. the statement reflects the 
system’s assets and liabilities using the full 
accrual basis of accounting, and represents 
financial position as of the conclusion of the 
fiscal year. this is a point in time financial 
presentation and presents a snapshot view 
of the financial status as of August 31, 2011. 
Comparative data for the previous fiscal  
year has also been presented as of  

schedule of unresTricTed neT asseTs (million) 2011 2010
reserved For:

Accounts receivable $ 31 $ 50 

encumbrances 16 11 

Higher education Fund 58 63 

Future operating budget 41 42 

student Fees restricted by statute 12 10 

other Funds 71 71 

unreserved ALLoCAted:

service Department operating $ 2 $ 2 

Auxiliary enterprise operating 4 4 

endowment & Loan Funds 51 37 

student Fees Limited to Purpose 23 24 

Unallocated 56 21 

ToTal unresTricTed neT asseTs $ 365 $ 335 
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August 31, 2010. Assets and liabilities are 
presented as either current or non-current 
to provide an indication of their anticipated 
liquidation. net Assets is equal to Assets  
minus Liabilities. Unrestricted net Assets  
are available to the system for any lawful  
purpose. Unrestricted net Assets often  
have constraints on resources, which are 
imposed by management or implied by 
statutes or regulations, but can be removed  
or modified. on August 31, 2011, the  
University of Houston system’s Assets  
totaled $2.334 billion, and Liabilities  
totaled $1.018 billion, resulting in a net  
Asset valuation of $1.316 billion. this  
represents an increase in net assets of  
$133 million. Asset increases occurred  
in investments due in part to a continued 
improvement of market driven increases  
in the valuation of the endowment.  
Capital asset acquisitions and holdings  
also increased.

the statement of net Assets enables  
the reader of the financial statements  
to determine the assets available for  
use in the continuing operations of the 
institutions. Also, the reader will be able  
to determine the amounts owed to  
vendors, investors, and lending institutions.  
net Assets are presented in three major 
categories: invested in capital assets,  
net of debt; restricted net assets; and 
unrestricted net assets. the invested in  
capital assets category identifies the  
equity in property, plant, and equipment  
owned by the system. restricted net  
assets are comprised of two sub  
categories: non-expendable and  
expendable. non-expendable restricted  

net assets are available only for endowed 
investment purposes. expendable net 
assets are available for expenditure  
but must be expended for the purposes 
specified by the external donor or provider  
of the assets. Unrestricted net assets are 
available for any lawful purposes of  
the institutions. Although not subject to  
the stipulations of external requirements,  
a significant portion of the system’s  
unrestricted net assets are committed  
to various future operating budgets  
related to academic, research, and  
capital programs and projects. Additional  
net asset balances are reserved for  
specific purposes by nature of their  
origin. these commitments are summarized  
in the accompanying table. 

sTaTemenT of revenues, expenses
and changes in neT asseTs 
the next statement comprising the primary 
financial statements is the statement of 
revenues, expenses and Changes in net  
Assets. this schedule identifies operating  
and non-operating revenues received by  
the system. Additionally, both the operating  
and non-operating expenses incurred by  
the system during the fiscal year are displayed. 
Finally, any other gains and losses or other  
forms of revenue and expense are reported.

During the 2011 fiscal year the system 
recognized operating revenues of $620  
million and operating expenses of $1.025 
billion. After recognizing non-operating  
activities and other gains and losses, the  
system realized a net increase in net assets  
of $133 million. this is a result of increases  
in revenues received in the categories of 
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federal and state grants, gifts and  
contributions, investment income, and  
revenues for services provided. During the  
prior fiscal year, the system experienced  
an increase in net assets of $144 million  
as a result of increases in revenues  
received in the categories of federal  
awards, gifts and contributions, and  
revenues for services provided.

revenues and expenses are classified as  
either operating or non-operating in the 
financial statements. operating revenues 
are received and recognized as a result 
of providing services to the component 
universities’ customers. tuition and fee  
revenues are reported net of any scholarship 
discounts and allowances. A scholarship 
allowance is the difference between the  
stated charge for services provided by  
the system and the amount that is paid  
by the student or third parties making  
payments on behalf of the student.  
Funds received to satisfy student tuition  
and fee charges are reported as revenue  
only once. institutional resources provided  
to students as financial aid are reported  
as scholarship allowances in amounts up  
to and equal to amounts owed by the  
students to the system.

operating expenses are the costs necessary  
to provide services to customers and to  
fulfill the mission of the system. operating 
expenses are displayed in the statement  
using the functional method of classification. 
the functional, or programmatic,  
classification method presents operating 
expenses in a manner that reflects the 
system’s commitments in fulfilling its mission 

of instruction, research, and public service, 
as well as the requirements of supporting 
and maintaining its administrative and 
physical structure. A supplemental schedule 
of operating expenses displays operating 
expenses comparing the functional 
classification and the natural classification 
methods. the natural method of presentation 
displays the operating expenses in a manner 
that categorizes the objects of expenditure 
within various cost centers. non-operating 
revenues are those received for which 
no services are directly provided. state 
appropriations are classified as non-operating 
revenue because they are provided by  
the Legislature to the system without the 
Legislature directly receiving goods or  
services for those revenues. significant  
portions of the system’s recurring resources  
are classified as non-operating. net  
resources from other than operating  
revenues totaled $606 million for fiscal  
year 2011, compared to $557 million for  
the prior fiscal year.

sTaTemenT of cash flows
the third primary statement included in  
the financial statements is the statement  
of Cash Flows. this schedule explains the  
change during the fiscal year in cash and  
cash equivalents, regardless of whether  
there are restrictions on their use. the  
statement of Cash Flows should be used  
in conjunction with related disclosures and 
information in the other financial statements. 
the statement can provide relevant  
information about an entity, such as the  
ability to generate future net cash flows,  
the ability to meet obligations when due,  
or reasons for differences between operating 
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income and associated cash receipts  
and payments. the statement is comprised  
of five sections. the first section recognizes  
the cash flows from operating activities  
as well as the net cash used by operating 
activities. the second section identifies  
the cash flows from non-capital financing 
activities. the third section reflects the  
cash flows from capital and related  
financing activities. the next section  
details the cash flows from investing  
activities. the final section reconciles  
net cash used to the operating loss or  
income reflected on the statement of 
revenues, expenses and Changes in  
net Assets.

the cash and cash equivalents balance  
at the conclusion of the 2011 fiscal year  
totaled $324 million, which reflected a  
net increase in cash of $47 million.

capiTal asseTs
rum As fundamental as instruction and 
research are to the universities within  
UHs, these endeavors cannot take place 
without the land, buildings, facilities,  
equipment, and information technology 
infrastructure needed to support them. 
sustaining these assets requires a significant 
investment in renovations, improvements, 
expansion, and maintenance. the goal  
of expending resources for these  
investments is achieving a safe, modern,  
and efficient campus environment that  
is conducive to learning, teaching,  
research, and community service.  
UHs institutions continue to implement  
their long-range capital plans.

At the end of the 2011 fiscal year, the  
system had $964 million of capital  
assets, net of accumulated depreciation  
and amortization. these assets included  
land, buildings, infrastructure and 
improvements, furniture and equipment,  
library books, computer systems software,  
and works of art. several major capital 
construction projects are in various stages  
of completion, and the cumulative  
investment in these assets is reported  
as construction in progress. net capital  
assets at August 31, 2010 totaled $860  
million. As required by gAsb reporting 
standards, the system reports accumulated 
depreciation and amortization on its capital 
assets. Additionally, the system recognizes 
a current year charge for depreciation and 
amortization expense.

building on a strategic planning process 
initiated under the leadership of the  
Chancellor and the board of regents, the  
UHs universities have developed a campus 
master planning process designed to  
identify facilities needs congruent with 
enrollment and research projections that  
are consistent with their missions and  
academic master plans. During fiscal year  
2011 the system continued its efforts to 
implement the capital projects construction 
element of its master plan. At UH, construction 
progressed on the build out of additional  
lab and research space in the science  
and engineering research Complex, new 
labs and an addition to the Fleming science 
building, a new health and biomedical 
sciences center, a new business classroom 
building, and an expansion and modernization 
of the Central Power Plant. Additionally,  
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further development occurred at the 74  
acre UH energy research Park that is  
designed to provide research and  
classroom space for programs such  
as petroleum engineering, as well as  
energy research centers and institutes.  
At UH – Clear Lake construction progressed  
on renovations to the Arbor building,  
which houses instructional and  
academic facilities.

debT adminisTraTion 
the system engages in the prudent use  
of debt to finance capital projects, as  
a means of maximizing the management  
of financial and physical resources. A 
combination of variable and fixed rate  
debt, consistent with the system’s debt 
management policy, is maintained. the  
system has sufficient debt capacity to  
finance planned capital improvements  
and facilities. Detailed information  
concerning the system’s long-term  
debt is found in the notes to the  
Financial statements.

the University of Houston system is  
authorized by statute to issue long term  
debt in the form of revenue bonds. each  
series of revenue bonds issued is backed  
by a pledged revenue source specified  
in the bond resolution. Additionally,  
each issue is designed to be self  
supporting from the primary revenue  
source. A portion of debt service is funded  
by biennial state appropriations. At  
August 31, 2011, the University of Houston 
system had $675 million of long term  
bonded debt outstanding, $29 million of  
which will be retired during the 2012  

fiscal year. no additional long-term debt  
was issued during the 2011 fiscal year.

build America bonds (bAbs) were created  
as part of the federal American recovery  
and reinvestment Act of 2009 (ArrA).  
taxable bonds may be issued by  
governmental entities, including state  
agencies and state universities, as tax  
Credit bAbs or as Direct Payment bAbs.  
tax Credit bAbs provide a federal tax  
credit to investors equal to 35 percent  
of the interest received from the bond  
issuer. Direct Payment bAbs provide a  
direct federal reimbursement to state  
and local governmental issuers equal  
to 35 percent of the interest paid on the  
bonds. During the 2010 fiscal year the  
UH system issued $79.9 million of  
Consolidated revenue and refunding  
bonds, series 2010-b, taxable revenue  
bonds under the Direct Payment bAbs  
program. A balance of $79.9 million  
remained outstanding at August 31,  
2011. no tax Credit bAbs were issued.

the system established a commercial  
paper program during the 2008 fiscal year, 
which permits the issuance of commercial 
paper notes which may not exceed, in  
the aggregate, a principal amount of $125  
million at any one time. the maximum  
maturity for the commercial paper is 270  
days and is issued at tax exempt and  
taxable interest rates. the commercial  
paper program provides interim financing  
for the costs of various capital projects  
within the system. in fiscal year 2011, the 
University of Houston system issued $48.3  
million of commercial paper notes. on  
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August 31, 2011, commercial paper  
notes payable totaled $42.1 million,  
compared to $10 million at the end  
of the previous fiscal year.

economic ouTlooK
As the global economy becomes  
increasingly driven by the creation of  
new knowledge and technological  
innovation, success for the Houston 
metropolitan area depends increasingly  
on the existence of a highly-skilled,  
professional workforce and cutting-
edge research and development. As the 
region’s largest provider of comprehensive 
(baccalaureate to doctorate) higher  
education services, the University of  
Houston system plays a primary role in  
meeting these needs. in doing so the  
UHs universities must succeed in providing 
access to a regional population that  
is growing increasingly diverse at a very  
rapid rate. Currently, the Houston  
metropolitan area is 17% African-American, 
35% Hispanic, and 40% white. the  
student population at the UH system is  
16% African-American, 26% Hispanic,  
and 34% white. Clearly, UHs is doing a  
good job of providing access to a  
diverse student population, although  
there is room for improvement  
with respect to the burgeoning Hispanic 
population. UH system performance  
with respect to the rankings on its  
progress and goals measures has also  
been strong.

With the UH system improving performance  
on most of its key progress and goals  
measures this year, the system is poised  

for continued success in the coming  
years. to harness this potential, the UH  
system universities have been engaged  
in regular strategic planning activities  
over the past three years. Last year, the 
universities established five- and ten-year 
targets for enrollment and research that 
correspond to their new mission statements.  
this year, the universities have developed 
campus master plans designed to  
facilitate the accomplishment of their 
enrollment and research targets. over  
the past year, the UHs universities have  
also been working on the four collaborative,  
system-wide initiatives identified by  
Chancellor Khator in 2009, specifically, 
international education, health sciences 
research and education, pathways for  
faculty collaboration among institutions,  
and pathways for student transfer  
among institutions.

several major accomplishments have  
been posted this year. First, a plan for  
a system-wide nursing program has  
been developed. once implemented,  
students in this high-demand field will  
be able to enroll in the program at  
multiple UHs institutions. second,  
capitalizing on University of Houston – 
Downtown’s status as a Hispanic serving 
institution (Hsi), UH and UHD have partnered  
to increase the number of joint grant  
proposals and awards received from  
federal research programs in which  
only Hsis and their partners can participate. 
UHCL, which also has Hsi status, will  
begin participating with UH and UHD next  
year. And finally, a pathway is now in  
place whereby UHs students can earn up  
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to six hours of course credit from any UHs 
university without going through separate 
admissions processes. Doing so will enable 
students to expand their options in terms  
of course availability and progress more  
quickly toward their degree.

As is the case for the UHs universities, the  
UH – system Administration is reducing its 
budgets to account for the reduction in  
state appropriations. to accomplish these 
reductions, staff were reduced in the  
central administration, and both staff  
and operations support were reduced  
at the UH system centers, as well as at  
the university campuses.

Following is a brief discussion of the primary 
initiatives on which UHs will focus during 
the 2012 fiscal year. (1) UH system campus 
master plans and collaborative initiatives; in 
fiscal year 2012, UH – system Administration, 
in collaboration with campus leadership, will 
continue work on the campus master plans  
and developing key initiatives. Master  
planning projects to be pursued next year 
include analyses of research space utilization  
in the UH colleges and planning for UHV  
and UHCL downward expansion. With respect  
to the collaborative initiatives, the UH system  
will begin the process of securing  
accreditation for its system-wide nursing 
program in fiscal year 2013. (2) UH system  
off-campus program expansion; in fiscal  
year 2012, the UH system will continue to 
conduct master planning activities and 
expanded program delivery at the  
off-campus teaching centers, including  
sugar Land, Cinco ranch, Pearland, and 
northwest Houston. Doing so is essential  

to expanding access to high-growth  
parts of the metropolitan area. (3)  
shared services initiative; currently,  
the UH system has shared services  
among its universities valued at $27.7  
million. At the request of the board of  
regents, the UHs universities have  
identified additional operations that  
could be shared in order to reduce  
costs (including payroll, training,  
benefits, and affirmative action among  
many others). in fiscal year 2012, the  
universities will continue identifying  
potential shared services and begin 
implementing those upon which there  
is consensus to move forward. (4) Federal  
and state legislative agendas; during  
fiscal year 2012 the UH system will  
develop and pursue its federal agenda  
for the 2013 fiscal year, which will  
advocate on behalf of federal research 
programs important to UHs faculty and  
policy issues related to higher education  
such as Pell grants. in anticipation of  
the 2013 state legislative session, the  
UH system will work with state legislators,  
other policy makers and other state  
universities to build an environment  
supportive of higher education and the  
UH system. in the process, it will be  
especially important to demonstrate  
that transparency and accountability are  
strong components of university operations.

the United states and the world experienced 
a significant downturn in their financial 
environments and economies beginning in  
mid calendar year 2008. the recessionary 
situation was characterized by a contraction  
of credit, high unemployment, falling  
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prices in housing, rising foreclosures,  
and deflated valuations for equities and  
other investment instruments. While the  
most recent recession has technically  
ended, uncertainty remains as to when  
the economy will begin to experience  
greater expansion than currently exists  
and when the unemployment rate  
and housing market will improve. Uncertainty 
also persists as to future tax and interest  
rate policy in the United states. Although 
valuations for equities and other investment 
instruments have rebounded from their 
depressed levels of mid calendar year  
2008 to March 2009, there continues to  
be increased volatility in valuations for  
equities and other investment instruments.

the duration of the economic issues  
facing the state and the U.s. cannot be 
predicted, however UHs administration  
believes that its financial management 
continues to demonstrate strength and 
a capacity to respond and adjust to 
ongoing economic uncertainties. Although 
it is not possible to predict ultimate results, 
management believes the University of  
Houston system will continue to maintain 
a sound financial position, and will be 
administratively structured and governed  
in a manner that will equip the system  
to withstand the current global financial 
situation. the system continues to stand 
committed to the principles of prudent and 
sound stewardship. UHs will not compromise  
on its long-term goals. its commitment to 
student success, research development,  
and responsibility to the community will  
remain at the forefront of the financial  
decision making process.
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noTes To The FinAnCiAL stAteMents
general inTroducTion 
the state Auditor of texas has not audited  
the accompanying Annual Financial report, 
and therefore, an opinion has not been nor 
will be expressed on the financial statements 
and related information contained in this 
report. the information contained in the 
combined financial statements of the 
University of Houston system, and its related 
components, is part of and included in 
the state of texas Comprehensive Annual 
Financial report, upon which an opinion is 
expressed. the state’s financial statements 
are audited by the state Auditor.

enTiTY 
the University of Houston system (the system)  
is an agency of the state of texas and its 
financial records comply with state statutes  
and regulations. this includes compliance 
with the texas Comptroller of Public Accounts’ 
reporting requirements for Annual Financial 
reports of state Agencies and universities.

the University of Houston system serves the  
state as the primary provider of educational 
and cultural opportunities, skilled employers  
and leaders, technical knowledge, and 
innovative research to the Houston metropolitan 
area and the upper texas gulf Coast region. 
Houston and the upper gulf Coast region 
represent approximately one fourth of the 
state’s population and economy.

the system was established by House bill  
no. 188, sixty-Fifth Legislature, regular  
session, effective september 1, 1977. 
Components of the system and their  

dates of recognition as state public entities: 
system Administration (1977), University of 
Houston (1963), Clear Lake (1973), Downtown 
(1974), and Victoria (1973). the system is 
governed by an appointed nine member 
board of regents.

During the 2002 fiscal year, the state of  
texas adopted governmental Accounting 
standards board (gAsb) statement no. 34,  
basic Financial statements - and 
Management’s discussion and Analysis - for 
state and Local governments, and gAsb 
statement no. 35, basic Financial statements 
- and Management’s discussion and Analysis 
- for Public Colleges and universities. these 
accounting pronouncements established 
new reporting requirements including the 
presentation of new financial information  
and a restructuring of the presentation of 
previous fiscal years. since the system’s  
annual financial report is not subject to a 
separate financial audit, certain information, 
such as a complete set of government-Wide 
Financial statements, is not included in the 
accompanying report. the financial  
statements are presented in columnar  
form, including totals for prior year data.  
Prior year totals have been restated  
when necessary to reflect current year  
changes in reporting procedures and to  
permit comparability of reported totals.

no component units have been identified 
which should have been discretely presented  
in the financial statements.
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basis of accounTing
A. FUnD strUCtUre 
the accompanying financial statements are 
presented on the basis of funds, each of  
which is considered a separate accounting 
entity. the operations of the system and its 
component universities are considered to  
be a business-type Activity. the system  
charges fees to external users for goods and 
services. Consequently the accompanying 
financial statements are presented using  
the Proprietary Fund type structure.

b. bAsis oF ACCoUnting
the basis of accounting determines when 
revenues and expenses are recognized in  
the accounts reported in the financial 
statements. the accounting and financial 
reporting treatment applied to a fund is 
determined by its measurement focus.

Proprietary funds are accounted for on the 
accrual basis of accounting. Under the  
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recognized when earned and expenses are 
recognized at the time liabilities are incurred. 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating from 
non-operating items. operating revenues  
and expenses result from providing services  
or producing and delivering goods in 
connection with the proprietary funds’  
principal ongoing operations. operating 
expenses include the cost of sales and  
services, administrative expenses, and 
depreciation on capital assets.

C. bUDget AnD bUDgetAry ACCoUnting
the budget is prepared biennially and 
represents appropriations authorized by the 
legislature and approved by the governor 
(the general Appropriations Act). Additionally 

the system prepares an annual budget which 
represents anticipated sources of revenues  
and authorized uses. this budget is 
approved by the system’s board of regents. 
Unencumbered appropriations are generally 
subject to lapse 60 days after the end of the 
fiscal year for which they were appropriated.

D. Assets, LiAbiLities, AnD net Assets

asseTs
CAsH AnD CAsH eqUiVALents
short-term highly liquid investments with an 
original maturity of three months or less are 
considered cash equivalents.

restriCteD Assets
restricted assets include monies or other 
resources restricted by legal or contractual 
requirements. these assets include proceeds 
of revenue bonds and revenues set aside for 
statutory or contractual requirements.

inVentories AnD PrePAiD iteMs
inventories include both merchandise 
inventories on hand for sale and consumable 
inventories. inventories are valued at cost, 
generally utilizing the last-in, first-out method. 
Prepaid items reflect payments for costs 
applicable to future accounting periods.  
the consumption method of accounting is  
used to account for inventories and prepaid 
items. the cost of these items is expensed  
when the items are consumed.

CAPitAL Assets
Assets with an initial, individual cost of more 
than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in 
excess of one year are capitalized. these  
assets are capitalized at cost or, if not 
purchased, at appraised fair value as of the 
date of acquisition. Depreciation is reported  
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on all exhaustible assets. inexhaustible  
assets such as land, works of art, and  
historical treasures are not depreciated. 
Depreciation is charged to operations over  
the estimated useful life of each asset,  
using the straight-line method.

otHer reCeiVAbLes
other current receivables include year-end 
revenue accruals not included in any other 
receivable category. non-current receivable 
balances are not expected to be collected 
within one year of fiscal year end.

liabiliTies
ACCoUnts PAyAbLe 
Accounts payable represent the liability for 
the value of assets or services received at 
the balance sheet date for which payment 
is pending. 

otHer PAyAbLes 
other current payables are the accrual at  
year-end of expenditure transactions 
not included in any of the other payable 
descriptions. non-current payable balances  
are not expected to be paid within one year  
of fiscal year end.

eMPLoyees’ CoMPensAbLe LeAVe bALAnCes 
employees’ compensable leave balances 
represent the liability that becomes due  
upon the occurrence of relevant events  
such as resignations, retirements, and uses 
of leave balances by covered employees. 
Liabilities are reported separately as either 
current or noncurrent in the statement of  
net Assets.

bonDs PAyAbLe - reVenUe bonDs
the bonds payable are reported at par, less 

unamortized discount or plus unamortized 
premium. interest expense is reported on the 
accrual basis, with amortization of discount  
or premium. Payables are reported separately 
as either current or noncurrent in the  
statement of net Assets.

neT asseTs 
the difference between fund assets and 
liabilities is net Assets.

inVesteD in CAPitAL Assets,  
net oF reLAteD Debt 
invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
consists of capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation and reduced by outstanding 
balances for bonds, notes, and other debt that 
are attributed to the acquisition, construction,  
or improvement of those assets. 

restriCteD net Assets 
restricted net assets result when constraints 
placed on net asset use are either externally 
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, 
and the like, or imposed by law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

UnrestriCteD net Assets
Unrestricted net assets consist of net assets 
which do not meet the definition of the two 
preceding categories. Unrestricted net assets 
often have constraints on resources, which 
are imposed by management, but can be 
removed or modified.

capiTal asseTs
the system reports accumulated depreciation 
on its capital assets and amortization on 
its intangible assets. Depreciation and 
amortization expenses are recognized as 
current year charges. 
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At August 31, 2011, non-depreciable  
capital assets, consisting primarily of land  
and construction in progress, totaled 
$285,959,162. Depreciable capital assets,  
net of accumulated depreciation, and 
consisting of buildings, infrastructure,  
facilities, equipment, library books, and  
works of art totaled $627,340,203. intangible 
assets, net of accumulated amortization  
and consisting of computer software and  
other intangible assets total $50,714,390.

deposiTs and invesTmenTs 
A. DePosits oF CAsH in bAnK 
At August 31, 2011, the carrying amount of  
the system’s cash deposits was $37,524,573 
and the bank balance was $44,612,936.  
there were no deposits to foreign banks.

b. inVestMents
the University of Houston system is authorized 
by statute to make investments following the 
“prudent person rule”. there were no  
significant violations of legal provisions  
during the period.

the fair value of investments, including  
short-term, long-term, and money market  
cash equivalents, as of the balance sheet  
date was $1,025,216,687. 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other 
counterparty to an investment will not fulfill  
its obligations. the general investment policy  
of the University limits investments in debt  
securities that are not in the top three 
investment grade ratings issued by nationally 
recognized statistical rating organizations to  
5% of total investments. As of August 31,  
2011, the system’s credit quality distribution  
for securities with credit risk included  

significantly less than 5% of total investments 
that were not in the top three grade ratings.

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss 
attributable to the magnitude of investment 
in a single issuer. As of August 31, 2011, the 
University ’s concentration of credit risk in any 
single issuer did not exceed five percent of  
total investment assets as reported on the 
statement of net Assets.

C. inVestMent trAnsACtions
reverse repurchase agreements 
the system, by statute, is authorized to enter 
into reverse repurchase agreements. the 
system did not invest in any reverse repurchase 
agreements during the fiscal year. 

securities lending
securities lending is authorized by state  
statutes. the system does not participate in  
a security-lending program. 

derivative investing
the system did not hold any collateralized 
mortgage obligations at fiscal year-end.  
the system does not enter into forward-
exchange contracts to manage exposure  
of foreign portfolio holdings to changes in 
foreign currency exchange rates.

discounTs and allowances 
the system reports revenues net of discounts 
and allowances in proprietary funds.  
Discounts and allowances are calculated 
based on historical experience. For the  
fiscal year 2011 discounts and allowances  
that related to tuition and fee revenues  
totaled $107,367,840.
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shorT Term liabiliTies
in the prior fiscal year the system issued 
commercial paper (Consolidated revenue 
Commercial Paper notes, series A) to  
facilitate renovation and construction  
projects at the University of Houston and UH-
Victoria. the balance was redeemed during 
fiscal year 2011. Additional commercial  
paper was issued during fiscal 2011, the 
proceeds of which were used to provide  
interim financing for renovation and 
construction projects at UH.

long Term liabiliTies
A. notes AnD LoAns PAyAbLe 
the system reported a balance of $42,150,133 
including interest as of August 31, 2011.

b. CLAiMs AnD JUDgMents
At August 31, 2011, various lawsuits and claims 
involving the system and/or its components 
were pending. While the ultimate liability, if  
any, with respect to litigation and other  
claims asserted against the system cannot  
be reasonably estimated at this time, such 
liability, to the extent not provided for by 
insurance or otherwise, is not expected to  
have a material effect on system accounts.

C. eMPLoyees’ CoMPensAbLe LeAVe
A state employee is entitled to be paid for  
all unused vacation time accrued, in the  
event of the employee’s resignation, 
dismissal, or separation from state 
employment, provided the employee has 
had continuous employment with the  
state for six months. An expense and  
liability are recorded as the benefits accrue 
to employees. the liability for unpaid  
benefits is recorded in the statement of  

net Assets. no liability is recorded for  
non-vesting accumulating rights to receive 
sick pay benefits.

Full-time state employees earn annual  
leave from eight to twenty-one hours per  
month depending on the respective 
employees’ years of state employment.  
the state’s policy is that an employee may 
carry his accrued leave forward from one  
fiscal year to another fiscal year with a 
maximum number of hours up to 532 for  
those employees with 35 or more years of  
state service. Accrued leave in excess of 
the normal maximum was converted to sick 
leave at the conclusion of fiscal year 2011. 
employees with at least six months of state 
service who terminate their employment are 
entitled to payment for all accumulated  
annual leave up to the maximum allowed.

Lump sum payments made to employees, 
who separated from state service during the 
2011 fiscal year, for accrued vacation and 
compensatory leave, totaled $2,315,083.

bonded indebTedness
A. oUtstAnDing reVenUe bonDs 
consolidated revenue bonds, series 2002-a 
 – to finance the acquisition, purchase, 
construction, improvement, enlargement  
and equipping of property, buildings, 
structures, activities, services, operations  
and other facilities, roads or related 
infrastructure for or on behalf of the  
University of Houston system and the 
individual campuses of the system. 

 – Proceeds were used to finance the 
renovation of M.D. Anderson Library and 
to build the science and engineering 
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research building (UH), to build the student 
services and Classroom building (UHCL), 
to build the Commerce street building 
(UHD) and renovation of the University West 
building (UHV).

 – issued 9-1-2002.

 – $130,955,000; all bonds authorized have 
been issued.

 – source of revenue for debt service – tuition 
and various other revenues and balances 
that may be legally available for payment  
of debt obligations (partial funding for fiscal 
year 2011 from Legislative appropriation - 
tuition revenue bonds).

consolidated revenue variable rate 
demand bonds, series 2004
 – to finance the acquisition, purchase, 
construction, improvement, enlargement  
and equipping of property, buildings, 
structures, activities, services, operations  
and other facilities, roads or related 
infrastructure for or on behalf of the  
University of Houston system and the 
individual campuses of the system. 

 – Proceeds were used for renovations  
following tropical storm Allison (UH).

 – issued 6-16-2004.

 – $25,000,000; all bonds authorized have 
been issued.

 – source of revenue for debt service – tuition 
and various other fees, and revenues and 
balances that may be legally available  
for payment of debt obligations (funding  
for fiscal year 2011 from Legislative 
appropriation - tuition revenue bonds).

 – the bonds bear interest at a variable rate, 
which is determined on a weekly basis  
each Wednesday. the rate is effective for 
a seven day period commencing on the 
immediately following thursday. the  
variable rate in effect on August 31, 2011  
was 0.19%.

 – bondholders have the option to tender  
their bonds for purchase at the price 
equal to the principal amount thereof, 
plus accrued interest, at the times and 
subject to the conditions described in the 
bond resolution. tendered bonds may be 
remarketed, and remain outstanding.  
bonds tendered for purchase will be paid  
first from the proceeds of remarketing, if  
any, and then from the legally available 
money advanced by the board of regents. 
in order to provide for the payment of 
the purchase price of tendered bonds, 
the board has agreed to provide self-
liquidity. the board has not entered into an 
agreement with an outside entity to provide 
liquidity in the event that the remarketing 
agent is unable to remarket the bonds on  
an optional tender date. Liquidity support  
for the bonds will be provided by the 
system’s funds and is expected to be 
provided first from funds invested in the 
systems’ non-endowed investment pool  
and money market accounts.

 – outstanding bonds maturing subsequent 
to 2-15-2011, totaling $860,000 were 
extinguished early by using existing assets.

consolidated revenue bonds, series 2005
 – to finance the acquisition, purchase, 
construction, improvement, enlargement  
and equipping of property, buildings, 
structures, activities, services, operations  
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and other facilities, roads or related 
infrastructure for or on behalf of the University 
of Houston system and the individual 
campuses of the system.

 – Proceeds were used to construct the 
Welcome Center garage (UH).

 – issued 4-1-2005.

 – $25,800,000; all bonds authorized have 
been issued.

 – source of revenue for debt service – tuition 
and various other fees, and revenues and 
balances that may be legally available for 
payment of debt obligations. 

 
consolidated revenue bonds, series 2006
 – to finance the acquisition, purchase, 
construction, improvement, enlargement  
and equipping of property, buildings, 
structures, activities, services, operations  
and other facilities, roads or related 
infrastructure for or on behalf of the  
University of Houston system and the 
individual campuses of the system. 

 – Proceeds were used to construct the shea 
street Academic building and Parking 
Facility (UHD).

 – issued 2-1-2006.

 – $35,140,000; all bonds authorized have 
been issued.

 – source of revenue for debt service – tuition 
and various other fees that may be legally 
available for payment of debt obligations.

 
 

general obligation bonds 
At August 31, 2011, the system had no bonds 
payable classified as general obligation bonds. 

refunding bonds 
consolidated revenue refunding bonds, 
series 2002-b
 – to refund $27,415,000 of Consolidated 
revenue refunding bonds, series 1993  
and $19,385,000 of Consolidated revenue  
bonds, series 1993-A.

 – issued 11-1-2002.

 – $45,425,000; all bonds authorized have 
been issued.

 – source of revenue for debt service – 
Designated tuition and various other  
revenues and balances that may be legally 
available for payment of debt obligations.

 – Average rate of bonds refunded: 5.4%  
(1993) and 5.5% (1993-A).

 – net proceeds from refunding series: 
$47,871,000, after receipt of bond  
premium of $2,888,998 and payment of 
$442,998 in underwriting fees, insurance,  
and other issuance costs.

 – Funds were used to purchase state and 
local government securities which were 
deposited in an irrevocable trust with an 
escrow agent to provide for all future debt 
payments on the 1993 and 1993-A series 
bonds, when the bonds were called for 
early redemption on 2-15-2003.

 – the 1993 and 1993-A series bonds are 
considered fully defeased and the liability  
for those bonds has been removed.
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 – refunding of the 1993 and 1993-A series 
bonds reduced the system’s debt service 
payments over the life of the bond issues  
by approximately $3,228,503.

 – economic gain: $2,733,595; the difference 
between the net present value of the old  
and new debt service payment.

consolidated revenue refunding bonds, 
series 2003
 – to refund $15,975,000 of Consolidated 
revenue refunding bonds, series 1995 (UH).

 – issued 12-01-2003.

 – $16,490,000; all bonds authorized have 
been issued.

 – source of revenue for debt service – tuition 
and various other revenues and balances 
that may be legally available for payment 
of debt obligations (funding for fiscal year 
2011 from legislative appropriation - tuition 
revenue bonds).

 – Average rate of bonds refunded: 5.92%.

 – net proceeds from refunding series: 
$17,419,961.18 after receipt of bond 
premium of $896,716. and payment of 
$266,453 in underwriting fees, insurance,  
and other issuance costs.

 – Funds were used to purchase state and  
local government securities which were 
deposited in an irrevocable trust with an 
escrow agent to provide for all future debt 
payments on the 1995 series bonds, when  
the bonds were called for early redemption 
on 2-15-2005.

 – the 1995 series bonds are considered fully 
defeased and the liability for those bonds  

has been removed from the investment  
in Plant fund group.

 – refunding of the 1995 series bonds 
reduced the system’s debt service 
payments over the life of the bond issues  
by approximately $1,377,275.

 – economic gain: $1,292,003; the difference 
between the net present value of the old  
and new debt service payment.

consolidated revenue refunding bonds, 
series 2006
 – to refund $3,295,000 of Consolidated 
revenue refunding bonds, series 1997  
(UHV) and $44,430,000 of Consolidated 
revenue bonds, series 2000 (UH).

 – issued 2-1-2006.

 – $48,450,000; all bonds authorized have 
been issued.

 – source of revenue for debt service – 
Designated tuition and various other 
fees, revenues and balances that may 
be legally available for payment of debt 
obligations. (Funding for fiscal year 2011 
partially from Legislative appropriation - 
tuition revenue bonds).

 – Average rate of bonds refunded: 5.45% 
(1997) and 5.45% (2000).

 – net proceeds from refunding series: 
$49,799,345, after receipt of bond  
premium of $1,823,210 and payment of 
$473,865 in underwriting fees, insurance,  
and other issuance costs.

 – Funds were used to purchase state and  
local government securities which were 
deposited in an irrevocable trust with an 
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escrow agent to provide for all future debt 
payments on the 1997 and 2000 series 
bonds. the 2000 series bonds was called  
for early redemption on 2-15-2010.

 – the 1997 series bonds maturing subsequent 
to 8-15-2007 and the 2000 series bonds 
maturing subsequent to 2-15-2010 are 
considered fully defeased and the liability  
for those bonds has been removed from  
the investment in Plant Fund group.

 – refunding of the 1997 and 2000 series  
bonds reduced the system’s debt service 
payments over the life of the bond issues  
by approximately $4,841,586.

 – economic gain: $3,013,573; the difference 
between the net present value of the old  
and new debt service payment.

consolidated revenue refunding bonds, 
series 2008
 – to (a) refund and defease certain 
outstanding commercial paper notes of 
the system. And (b) finance the acquisition, 
purchase, improvement, enlargement  
and equipping of property, buildings, 
structures, activities, services, operations  
and other facilities, roads or related 
infrastructure for or on behalf of the  
system, including individual campuses  
of the system.

 – in addition to the defeasement of certain  
commercial paper noted above, the 
proceeds were used to finance the 
construction of Calhoun Lofts, east  
Parking garage part 1, Macgregor 
land purchase (all UH), the Allied Health 
Facility, the regional Center for economic 

Development, and building 2, sugarland 
(all UHV).

 – issued 7-1-2008.

 – $175,030,000; all bonds authorized have 
been issued.

 – source of revenue for debt service – 
Designated tuition and various other  
revenues and balances that may be  
legally available for payment of debt 
obligations (funding for fiscal 2011  
partially from legislative appropriation -  
tuition revenue bonds).

consolidated revenue and refunding 
bonds, series 2009 
 – to (a) defease certain outstanding 
commercial paper notes of the system 
and (b) finance the acquisition, purchase, 
construction, improvement, enlargement 
and equipping of property, buildings, 
structures, activities, services, operation  
and other facilities, roads or infrastructure 
related for or on behalf of the system, 
including individual campuses of  
the system.

 – in addition to the defeasement of certain 
commercial paper noted above, the 
proceeds were used to finance the science 
Lab renovations, the purchase of bayou 
oaks, the construction of the stadium 
Parking garage Part 1, the east garage  
Part 2 (all UH) and the renovation of the 
Arbor building (UHCL).

 – issued 2-4-2009.

 – $108,395,000; all bonds authorized 
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have been issued: $98,230,000 (UH) and 
$10,165,000 (UHCL).

 – source of revenue for debt service – 
Designated tuition and various other 
fees, revenues and balances that may 
be legally available for payment of debt 
obligations. (Funding for fiscal year 2011 
partially from Legislative appropriation - 
tuition revenue bonds).

consolidated revenue and refunding 
bonds, series 2009-a
 – to (a) refund and defease $20,515,000  
of outstanding Consolidated revenue 
bonds, series 1999 and (b) finance the 
acquisition, purchase, construction, 
improvement, enlargement and equipping 
of property, buildings, structures, activities, 
services operation and other facilities,  
roads or infrastructure related for or on 
behalf of the system, including individual 
campuses of the system.

 – in addition to the defeasement of the  
bonds noted above, the proceeds were  
used to finance the construction of  
Cougar Village Part 1 (UH).

 – issued 7-2-2009

 – $71,175,000; all bonds authorized have  
been issued: $52,200,00 revenue bonds 
(UH); and refunding bonds $6,829,103 (UH), 
$4,267,477 (UHD), $7,878,420 (UHV).

 – source of revenue for debt service – 
Designated tuition and various other 
fees, revenues and balances that may 
be legally available for payment of debt 
obligations. (Funding for fiscal 2011 
partially from Legislative appropriation - 
tuition revenue bonds).

 – Average interest rate of bonds 
refunded: 4.89%

 – net proceeds from refunding series: 
$20,892,800, after receipt of $1,719,639  
and additional available funds of $377,641 
and payment of $179,479 in underwriting 
fees, insurance and other issuance costs.

 – sufficient funds were deposited with an 
escrow agent to provide for full payment  
of all outstanding obligations related to  
the 1999 series bonds after they were  
called for early redemption.  

 – the 1999 series bonds maturing subsequent 
to 2-15-2009 are considered fully defeased 
and the obligation for these bonds has 
been removed from the reported liabilities 
of the system.

 – refunding the 1999 series bonds reduced 
the system’s debt service payments 
over the life of the bond issues by 
approximately $2,023,239.

 – economic gain: $1,174,552; the difference 
between the net present value of the old  
and new debt service payment.

consolidated revenue and refunding 
bonds, series 2010-a
 – to (a) defease certain outstanding 
commercial paper notes of the system 
and (b) finance the acquisition, purchase, 
construction, improvement, enlargement, 
and equipping of property, buildings, 
structures, activities, services, operations  
and other facilities, roads, or related 
infrastructure for or on behalf of the  
system, including individual campuses  
of the system. 
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 – in addition to the defeasement of certain 
commercial paper noted above proceeds 
were used to finance construction costs 
related to the UH Moody towers Dining  
Hall and facilities at the UH energy  
research Park.

 – issued 4-15-2010.

 – $23,305,000; all bonds authorized have 
been issued: $23,305,000 (UH).

 – source of revenue for debt service – 
Designated tuition and various other  
fees, revenues and balances that may  
be legally available for payment of  
debt obligations. 

consolidated revenue and refunding 
bonds, series 2010-b 
 – to (a) defease certain outstanding 
commercial paper notes of the system 
and (b) finance the acquisition, purchase, 
construction, improvement, enlargement, 
and equipping of property, buildings, 
structures, activities, services, operations  
and other facilities, roads, or related 
infrastructure for or on behalf of the  
system, including individual campuses  
of the system. 

 – in addition to the defeasement of certain 
commercial paper noted above proceeds 
were used to finance construction costs 
related to the Moody towers Dining Hall,  
the Health and Medical sciences building,  
a classroom/business building, stadium 
Parking garage 1, and facilities at the UH 
energy research Park (all UH) and Jaguar 
residence Hall (UHV). 

 – this bond issue is a qualified build America 

bond (bAb) as defined within sections  
54AA and 6431 of the internal revenue  
Code of 1986, as amended.

 – issued 4-15-2010.

 – $79,975,000; all bonds authorized have 
been issued: $74,626,469 (UH) and 
$5,288,531 (UHV).

 – source of revenue for debt service – 
Designated tuition and various other  
fees, revenues and balances that may 
be legally available for payment of debt 
obligations. the system will receive  
interest subsidy payments from the U.s. 
treasury equal to 35 percent of the  
interest payable on related qualified  
build America bonds contemporaneously  
with the interest payment dates of the  
qualified build America bonds.

consolidated revenue refunding bonds, 
series 2010-c 
 – to (a) defease certain outstanding 
commercial paper notes of the system 
and (b) finance the acquisition, purchase, 
construction, improvement, enlargement, 
and equipping of property, buildings, 
structures, activities, services, operations 
and other facilities, roads, or related 
infrastructure for or on behalf of the 
system, including individual campuses  
of the system. 

 – in addition to the defeasement of certain 
commercial paper noted above proceeds 
were used to finance construction costs 
related to the Moody towers Dining Hall, 
various science buildings, a classroom/
business building, stadium Parking garage 
2, facilities at the UH energy research Park 
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(all UH) and for construction costs related  
to Jaguar residence Hall (UHV).

 – issued 4-15-2010. 

 – $18,255,000; all bonds authorized have  
been issued $16,698,745 (UH) and 
$1,556,255 (UHV).

 – source of revenue for debt service 
Designated tuition and various other  
fees, revenues and balances that may  
be legally available for payment of  
debt obligations.

pledged future revenues
gAsb statement no. 48, sales and Pledges  
of Future revenues, and intra-entity transfers  
of Assets and Future revenues, makes a  
basic distinction between sales of receivables  
and future revenues on the one hand and  
the pledging of future revenues to repay 
borrowing (collateralized borrowing) on the 
other. in the fiscal year ended August 31, 
2011, the pledged revenue from business  
type activities required for future principal  
and interest on existing bonds was 
$1,011,359,279. term of commitment is 
August 31, 2038. the percentage of revenue 
pledged is 71.2%. Current year pledged 
revenue is $624,084,154. Current year 
principal and interest paid is $57,978,571. 

build america bonds
build America bonds (bAbs) were created  
as part of the federal American recovery  
and reinvestment Act of 2009 (ArrA).  
taxable bonds may be issued by government 
entities, including state agencies and state 
universities, as tax Credit bAbs or Direct  
Payment bAbs. tax Credit bAbs provide a  

federal tax credit to investors equal to 35 
percent of the interest received from the  
bond issuer. Direct Payment bAbs provide  
a direct federal reimbursement to state  
and local issuers equal to 35 percent  
of the interest paid on the bonds.

During the 2010 fiscal year the University  
of Houston issued $79,975,000 of  
Consolidated revenue and refunding  
bonds, series 2010-b taxable revenue bonds 
under the Direct Payment bAbs program.  
A balance of $79,975,000 remained 
outstanding at August 31,2011. no tax  
Credit bAbs were issued.

b. CHAnges in bonDeD inDebteDness
bonds payable are due in annual  
installments varying from $7,277,500 to 
$59,950,518 with interest rates from 2.00%  
to 7.00%, and the final installment due  
2-15-2041.

C. FUtUre Debt serViCe reqUireMents
Principal and interest requirements on 
the obligations for the next five years are 
$298,088,489; and $713,270,790 for all 
years beyond. 

lease obligaTions 
included in expenditures reported in the 
financial statements for rent paid or due 
under operating leases is $6,679,883. Future 
minimum lease rental payments under  
non-cancelable operating leases having 
an initial term in excess of one year, totaled 
$12,452,687 as of August 31, 2011.

the system has entered into a long term  
capital lease for the purchase of certain  
capital assets. such leases are classified as 
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capital leases for accounting purposes and  
are recorded at the present value of the  
future minimum lease payments at the 
inception of the lease. the original cost of  
the asset is $7,372,978. Accumulated 
depreciation is $335,517 for a total  
capitalized lease value of $7,037,461.

emploYees reTiremenT plans
the state has joint contributory retirement  
plans for substantially all its employees.  
the system participates in the plans 
administered by the teachers retirement 
system of texas. Future pension costs are 
the liabilities of the retirement system. the 
retirement system does not account for  
each state agency separately. Annual  
financial reports prepared by the retirement 
system include audited financial statements 
and actuarial assumptions and conclusions.  
the contributions made by plan members  
for 2011 were $13,551,597. system 
contributions were $13,820,421.

the state has also established an optional 
retirement Program for institutions of higher 
education. Participation in the optional 
retirement Program is available to certain 
eligible employees and is in lieu of  
participation in the teacher retirement  
system. the optional retirement Program 
provides for the purchase of annuity or  
mutual fund contracts. 

the contributions made by plan members  
for 2011 were $15,978,870. system 
contributions were $17,663,004. since these  
are individual investment product contracts,  
the state has no additional or unfunded  
liability for this program.

 
deferred compensaTion 
state employees may elect to defer a  
portion of their earnings for income tax  
and investment purposes pursuant to  
authority granted in the texas government 
Code Annotated, section 609.001. two  
plans are available for employees’  
deferred compensation plans. both plans  
are administered by the employees  
retirement system.

the state’s 457 plan complies with the  
internal revenue Code section 457. the  
state also administers another plan, 
“texasaver,” created in accordance with 
internal revenue Code sec. 401(k). the  
assets of this plan do not belong to the  
state. the state has no liability related to  
this plan.

the tax deferred investment program permits 
benefits-eligible employees of the University 
of Houston system to purchase qualified tax 
deferred investments with a portion of their 
salaries. Participation in the program is  
voluntary and is a supplement to the teacher 
retirement system or the optional retirement 
Program. it is however, separate and apart  
from either.

inTerfund balances
there are numerous transactions between  
funds and state agencies. At year-end, 
amounts to be received or paid are reported  
as (1) interfund receivables or Payables, (2)  
Due From or Due to other Agencies, (3) Due 
From or Due to other Funds, (4) transfers in  
or transfers out, and (5) Legislative transfers  
in or Legislative transfers out.
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the system experienced routine transfers  
with other state agencies, which were 
consistent with the activities of the fund  
making the transfer. repayment of interfund 
balances will occur within one year from  
the date of the financial statement.

conTingenT liabiliTies
Various lawsuits and claims involving the  
system were pending. While the ultimate 
liability, if any, remains uncertain, management 
does not expect any possible adverse ruling  
to have a material effect on system accounts.

the system has received several federal  
grants for specific purposes that are subject 
to review and audit by the grantor agencies. 
such audits could lead to a request for 
reimbursements to grantor agencies for 
expenditures disallowed under the terms of  
the grant. based on prior experience, 
management believes such disallowances,  
if any, will be immaterial.  
 
conTinuance subjecT To review 
the system is not subject to the provisions 
of the texas sunset Act (Chapter 325, texas 
government Code Annotated). the Act 
provides for the regular assessment of the 
continuing need for state agencies to exist. 
Certain agencies, such as institutions of  
higher education and courts, are not  
subject to the sunset Act.

resTaTemenT of neT asseTs
During fiscal year 2011 a restatement of 
the prior year ’s net assets/fund equity was 
required. the restatements represent prior 
period adjustments to beginning net assets 
related to capital assets and accumulated 
depreciation changes.

subsequenT evenTs
the board of regents authorized the system  
to issue additional Consolidated revenue  
and refunding bonds during the 2012 
fiscal year in a par amount not to exceed 
$315,000,000.  the series 2011-A bonds will 
fund various construction and renovation 
projects at multiple campuses within the UH 
system.  the series 2011-b bonds will provide 
refunding for the series 2002-A and series  
2002-b bonds.

As of the date this report was issued, there  
have been no additional events since  
August 31, 2011 that had a significant  
financial impact and required disclosure.

risK financing and relaTed issuance
the University of Houston system is exposed 
to a variety of civil claims resulting from the 
performance of its duties. it is system policy  
to periodically assess the proper combination 
of commercial insurance and retention of risk  
to cover losses to which it may be exposed.

the system assumes substantially all risks 
associated with tort and liability claims due  
to the performance of its duties. Currently  
some commercial insurance is purchased,  
and the system is not involved in any risk  
pools with other government entities.

the system’s liabilities are reported when  
it is both probable that a loss has occurred  
and the amount of that loss can be  
reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an 
amount for claims that have been incurred  
but not reported. Liabilities are reevaluated  
periodically to consider current settlements, 
frequency of claims, past experience and 
economic factors.
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relaTed parTies
the system is affiliated with several  
foundations and organizations that have  
been created to benefit certain operations  
of the system. these organizations are 
considered to be separate legal entities,  
and as such are not considered component 
units as defined by generally accepted 
accounting principles. therefore, the  
account balances and financial transactions  
of these organizations are not included in  
the system’s financial statements.

several student housing facility projects  
have been constructed by private external 
entities in order to enhance the residential 
life experience of students at various system 
campuses. these facilities are operated  
under ground leases and management 
agreements with the system for extended  
time periods. Under the terms of the 
agreements, cash revenues from rental 
income, net of operating expenses, are  
shared with the system. if cash revenues 
do not attain certain contractually defined 
thresholds, the system is liable to the external 
management for the deficiency. During the 
2010 and 2011 fiscal years net cash flows  
were sufficiently adequate so as not to 
generate a liability payment. system 
management believes that current financial 
and occupancy performance indicates that 
future years net cash flows will be sufficient  
and that future contingent liabilities will not 
occur. repayment of project financing is 
serviced from revenues generated by the 
housing projects, and is the sole responsibility  
of the external entity. the related loans and 
bonds are not liabilities of the system or 
component universities. American Campus 

Communities operates the Cullen oaks 
facility at the University of Houston. Century 
Development operates the Cambridge  
oaks facility at the University of Houston and  
the University Forest facility at the University  
of Houston-Clear Lake.

segmenT informaTion
the system has no segment activity that 
requires separate disclosure in the notes  
to the financial statements. A segment is  
an identifiable activity, or group of activities, 
reported as or within an enterprise fund or 
any other stand-alone entity that has one 
or more bonds or other debt instruments 
outstanding, with a revenue stream pledged 
in support of that debt. in addition, the 
activity ’s revenues, expenses, gains and 
losses, assets, and liabilities are required to 
be accounted for separately. 

exTraordinarY and special iTems
no items have been identified which 
should have been presented in the 
financial statements.
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sTaTemenT of neT asseTs

sTaTemenT of revenues, expenses & changes in neT asseTs

sTaTemenT of cash flows

maTrix of operaTing expenses
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financial stAteMents
UniVersity oF HoUston - stAteMent oF net Assets 
As of August 31, 2011

asseTs 2011 2010
Current Assets

Cash & Cash equivalents $ 95,106,147 $ 52,910,036 

short-term investments 1,664,863 5,239,536 

restricted Cash & Cash equivalents (3,216,383) 20,496,258 

Loans & Contracts 2,690,516 10,745,356

Legislative Appropriations 70,732,652 80,639,364 

receivables 222,847,396 194,028,332 

inventories 2,047,838 2,177,925

Deferred Charges 36,082,888 38,434,345 

ToTal currenT asseTs $ 427,955,917 $ 404,671,152 

non-Current Assets

restricted Cash & Cash equivalents $ 112,170,554 $ 90,933,259 

Loans & other receivables 452,433,450 501,482,210 

investments 327,739 768,130 

Capital Assets,  
non-Depreciable/non-Amortizable 243,079,411 160,392,784 

Capital Assets, Amortizable/Depreciable 1,126,301,949 1,071,113,634

Accumulated Amortization/Depreciation (661,648,108) (618,405,221)

ToTal non-currenT asseTs $ 1,272,664,995 $ 1,206,284,796 

ToTal asseTs $ 1,700,620,912 $ 1,610,955,948 

liabiliTies 2011 2010
Current LiAbiLities

Payables $ 68,180,214 $ 63,178,821

Deferred revenues 128,873,750 123,667,579 

employees’ Compensable Leave 8,568,738 8,114,776 

revenue bonds Payable 19,565,529 18,773,536 

Claims & Judgments Payable 174,446 279,414 

Funds Held for others 8,956,747 11,642,957 

ToTal currenT liabiliTies $ 234,319,424 $ 225,657,083 

non-Current LiAbiLities

employees’ Compensable Leave $ 9,308,872 $ 9,005,004 

revenue bonds Payable 523,918,717 $ 543,484,246 

Claims & Judgments Payable 9,344 $ 10,933 

ToTal non-currenT liabiliTies $ 533,236,933 $ 552,500,183 

ToTal liabiliTies $ 767,556,357 $ 778,157,266 

neT asseTs
invested in Capital Assets,  
net of related Debt $ 271,953,185 $ 215,098,136 

restricted, Debt retirement 13,882,409 16,525,774 

restricted, Capital Projects 5,642,200 4,874,828 

restricted, endowment Funds 287,206,810 265,880,808 

restricted, other 106,573,484 106,818,832 

Unrestricted 247,806,467 223,600,304 

ToTal neT asseTs $ 933,064,555 $ 832,798,682 
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financial stAteMents
UniVersity oF HoUston - stAteMent oF reVenUes, exPenses & CHAnges in net Assets 
For the year ended August 31, 2011

operaTing revenues 2011 2010
tuition & Fees, net of Discounts $ 282,533,753 $ 241,782,418 

sales of goods & services 88,111,828 72,454,231 

Federal revenue 59,306,883 44,965,192 

state grant revenue 37,761,519 31,878,822 

other grants & Contracts 18,269,822 21,530,723 

ToTal operaTing revenues $ 485,983,805 $ 412,611,386 

operaTing expenses
instruction $ 194,374,819 $ 191,027,113 

research 93,756,014 95,929,702 

Public service 39,125,318 38,906,786 

Academic support 121,434,691 119,125,016 

student services 23,827,047 24,976,384 

institutional support 57,095,308 51,616,907 

operation & Maintenance of Plant 35,586,377 32,067,365 

scholarships & Fellowships 48,516,854 30,623,526 

Auxiliary enterprises 76,811,103 71,114,740 

Depreciation & Amortization 46,721,702 37,228,658 

ToTal operaTing expenses $ 737,249,233 $ 692,616,197 

operaTing income (loss) $ (251,265,428) $ (280,004,811)

non-operaTing revenues (expenses) 2011 2010
Legislative revenue $ 181,506,873 $ 189,416,091 

gifts 79,797,057 54,231,326 

Federal revenue non-operating 73,835,722 83,008,295 

investment income 23,549,060 375,021 

interest expense & Fiscal Changes (25,617,831) (22,587,114)

net increase (Decrease) in Fair Value  
of investments 1,927,312 16,969,606

other non-operating revenues (expenses) (30,453,231) (73,234)

ToTal non-operaTing revenues 
(expenses)

 
$ 304,544,962 

 
$ 321,339,991 

income (loss) before oTher 
revenues, expenses, gains,  
losses & Transfers

 
 
$

 
53,279,534 

 
 
$ 41,335,180 

oTher revenues, expenses, gains, losses & Transfers
Capital Appropriation  
(Higher education Assistance Funds)

 
$ 35,885,768 

 
$

 
36,091,538 

Additions to Permanent &  
term endowments 12,824,750 4,824,694 

intercomponent transfers 2,750,257 4,048,625 

transfers-out (4,295,716) (3,253,755)

Legislative transfers 28,883 130,817 

Legislative Appropriations Lapsed (11,609) (22,152)

ToTal oTher revenues, expenses, 
gains, losses & Transfers

 
$ 47,182,333 

 
$ 41,819,767 

change in neT asseTs $ 100,461,867 $ 83,154,947 

net Assets beginning 832,798,682 749,672,154 

restatements (195,994) (28,419)

neT asseTs beginning, as resTaTed $ 832,602,688 $ 749,643,735 

neT asseTs, ending $ 933,064,555 $ 832,798,682 
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financial stAteMents
UniVersity oF HoUston - stAteMent oF CAsH FLoWs 
For the year ended August 31, 2011

cash flows from operaTing acTiviTies 2011 2010
Proceeds received from  
students & Customers

 
$

 
320,455,884 

 
$

 
256,281,417 

Proceeds from Loan Programs 170,760,244 97,163,907 

Proceeds from other revenues 150,293,781 126,684,010 

Payments to suppliers for  
goods & services

 
(166,659,331)

 
(183,213,167)

Payments for employees (450,970,243) (435,566,690)

Payments for Loans Provided (161,238,845) (97,651,792)

Payments for other expenses (69,242,519) (44,191,838)

neT cash provided (used)  
bY operaTing acTiviTies

 
$ (206,601,029)

 
$ (280,494,153)

cash flows from non-capiTal financing acTiviTies
Proceeds from state Appropriations $ 191,400,688 $ 171,743,482 

Proceeds from gifts 80,516,585 50,264,323 

Proceeds from endowments 12,824,750 4,824,694 

Proceeds of transfers from other Funds 12,884,481 20,105,793 

Proceeds from other revenues 73,835,722 83,008,296 

Payments for other Uses (11,249,875) (6,653,712)

neT cash provided  
bY non-capiTal financing acTiviTies

 
$ 360,212,351 

 
$

 
323,292,876 

cash flows from capiTal & relaTed financing acTiviTies 
Proceeds from Capital  
Financing Activities

 
$ 101,731,032 

 
$ 161,025,183 

Payments for Additions to Capital Assets (141,549,751) (89,484,418)

Payments of Principal & interest  
on Debt issuance (76,698,528) (103,595,739)

neT cash provided (used) bY capiTal 
& relaTed financing acTiviTies

 
$

 
(116,517,247)

 
$ (32,054,974)

cash flows from invesTing acTiviTies 2011 2010
Proceeds from interest &  
investment income

 
$ 25,916,764 

 
$ 8,432,512 

Payments to Acquire investments (23,290,075) (11,843,873)

neT cash provided  
bY invesTing acTiviTies

 
$ 2,626,689

 
$

 
(3,411,361)

increase (decrease)  
in cash & cash equivalenTs $ 39,720,764 $ 7,332,388 

cash & cash equivalenTs, sepTember 1 $ 164,339,553 $ 157,007,165 

cash & cash equivalenTs, augusT 31 $ 204,060,317 $ 164,339,553 

reconciliaTion of operaTing income (loss) To neT cash
Provided (used) by oPerAting ACtivities

operaTing income (loss) $ (251,265,428) $ (280,004,811)

adjusTmenTs To reconcile operaTing income To neT cash
Provided (used) by oPerAting ACtivities

Amortization & Depreciation $ 46,721,702 $ 37,228,658 

Classification Differences 9,521,398 (487,884)

ChAnges in Assets & LiAbiLities

(increase) Decrease in receivables & Loans (18,462,692) (32,024,845)

(increase) Decrease in inventories 130,086 317,306 

(increase) Decrease in other Assets (2,008,552) 2,145,769 

(increase) Decrease in Payables (1,336,452) (16,317,033)

(increase) Decrease in Prepaid expenses 2,351,457 7,049,169 

(increase) Decrease in Deferred income 5,206,171 816,723 

(increase) Decrease in other Liabilities 2,541,281 782,795 

ToTal adjusTmenTs $ 44,664,399 $ (489,342)

neT cash provided bY  
operaTing acTiviTies $ (206,601,029) $ (280,494,153)
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financial stAteMents
UniVersity oF HoUston - MAtrix oF oPerAting exPenses 
For year ended August 31, 2011

expenses bY naTural classificaTion 2011 2010
Cost of goods sold $ 2,513,645 $ 3,151,410 

salaries & Wages 371,577,176 360,252,578 

Payroll related Costs 81,891,077 77,219,563 

Professional Fees & services 37,031,070 37,967,232 

Federal Pass-through expenses 2,805,689 3,262,107 

state Pass-through expenses 192,677 —

travel 10,362,566 11,547,201 

Materials & supplies 27,042,155 30,534,091 

Communication & Utilities 37,569,432 35,705,825 

repairs & Maintenance 9,504,195 9,121,373 

rentals & Leases 18,216,005 14,828,218 

Printing & reproduction 3,561,064 4,025,186 

Depreciation & Amortization 46,721,702 37,228,658 

interest 41,911 35,570 

scholarships 55,769,138 33,398,690 

Claims & Losses 1,156,754 1,139,699 

other operating expenses 31,292,977 33,198,796

ToTal operaTing expenses (naTural) $ 737,249,233 $ 692,616,197 

expenses bY funcTional classificaTion 2011 2010
instruction $ 194,374,819 $ 191,027,113 

research 93,756,014 95,929,702 

Public service 39,125,318 38,906,786 

Academic support 121,434,691 119,125,016 

student services 23,827,047 24,976,384 

institutional support 57,095,308 51,616,907 

Physical Plant 35,586,377 32,067,365 

scholarships & Fellowships 48,516,854 30,623,526 

Auxiliary enterprises 76,811,103 71,114,740 

Depreciation & Amortization 46,721,702 37,228,658 

ToTal expenses bY  
expendiTure funcTion $ 737,249,233 $ 692,616,197 
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financial stAteMents
UniVersity oF HoUston CLeAr LAKe - stAteMent oF net Assets 
As of August 31, 2011

asseTs 2011 2010
Current Assets

Cash & Cash equivalents $ 27,311,252 $ 20,109,572 

restricted Cash & Cash equivalents (2,655,213) (2,536,445)

Loans & Contracts 2,384,151 2,336,600 

Legislative Appropriations 5,757,418 5,670,929 

receivables 24,557,980 23,563,135 

inventories 15,454 12,909 

Deferred Charges 2,508,931 2,651,024 

ToTal currenT asseTs $ 59,879,973 $ 51,807,724 

non-Current Assets

restricted Cash & Cash equivalents $ 850,123 $ 458,098 

Loans & other receivables 24,308,769 31,141,357 

Capital Assets,  
non-Depreciable/non-Amortizable 23,230,236 12,504,633 

Capital Assets, Amortizable/Depreciable 134,885,217 124,722,720 

Accumulated Amortization/Depreciation (85,884,020) (81,699,124)

ToTal non-currenT asseTs $ 97,390,325 $ 87,127,684 

ToTal asseTs $ 157,270,298 $ 138,935,408 

liabiliTies 2011 2010
Current LiAbiLities

Payables $ 5,566,248 $ 4,943,199 

Deferred revenues 22,247,438 21,367,990 

Capital Lease obligations 366,160 —

employees’ Compensable Leave 1,000,192 920,322 

revenue bonds Payable 2,059,858 1,984,858 

Claims & Judgments Payable 20,331 —

Funds Held for others 365,866 404,204 

ToTal currenT liabiliTies $ 31,626,093 $ 29,620,573

non-Current LiAbiLities

Claims & Judgments Payable $ 1,604 $ — 

employees’ Compensable Leave 1,086,584 1,021,286 

revenue bonds Payable 30,356,901 32,416,759 

Capital Lease obligations 7,006,818 — 

ToTal non-currenT liabiliTies $ 38,451,907 $ 33,438,045 

ToTal liabiliTies $ 70,078,000 $ 63,058,618 

neT asseTs
invested in Capital Assets,  
net of related Debt $ 34,927,094 $ 32,533,881 

restricted, Debt retirement 526,759 561,630 

restricted, endowment Funds 11,732,239 11,199,237 

restricted, other 2,544,321 1,672,398 

Unrestricted 37,461,885 29,909,644 

ToTal neT asseTs $ 87,192,298 $ 75,876,790 
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financial stAteMents
UniVersity oF HoUston CLeAr LAKe - stAteMent oF reVenUes, exPenses & CHAnges in net Assets 
For the year ended August 31, 2011

operaTing revenues 2011 2010
tuition & Fees, net of Discounts $ 40,958,965 $ 37,914,718 

sales of goods & services 2,740,279 2,734,748 

Federal revenue 2,641,762 2,063,460 

state grant revenue 1,923,960 2,414,561 

other grants & Contracts 287,181 283,455 

ToTal operaTing revenues $ 48,552,147 $ 45,410,942 

operaTing expenses
instruction $ 36,686,822 $ 35,935,021 

research 1,746,646 1,279,461 

Public service 194,238 189,118 

Academic support 11,442,015 11,572,561 

student services 3,853,655 3,494,592 

institutional support 15,122,620 14,145,385 

operation & Maintenance of Plant 7,457,039 6,499,800 

scholarships & Fellowships 8,295,509 7,928,209 

Auxiliary enterprises 4,819,317 4,758,025 

Depreciation & Amortization 4,640,140 4,231,119 

ToTal operaTing expenses $ 94,258,001 $ 90,033,291 

operaTing income (loss) $ (45,705,854) $ (44,622,349)

non-operaTing revenues (expenses) 2011 2010
Legislative revenue $ 35,212,454 $ 35,743,895 

gifts 1,169,644 550,415 

Federal revenue non-operating 10,404,859 7,888,051 

investment income 1,707,498 73,264 

interest expense & Fiscal Changes (1,388,439) (1,559,998)

net increase (Decrease) in Fair Value  
of investments 301,258 1,388,088 

other non-operating revenues (expenses) 4,368,263 (225,321)

ToTal non-operaTing revenues 
(expenses)

 
$

 
51,775,537 

 
$

 
43,858,394 

income (loss) before oTher 
revenues, expenses, gains,  
losses & Transfers

 
 
$

 
 

6,069,683 

 
 
$

 
 

(763,955)

oTher revenues, expenses, gains, losses & Transfers
Capital Appropriation  
(Higher education Assistance Funds)

 
$ 5,214,167 

 
$ 5,355,874 

Additions to Permanent &  
term endowments 238,355 181,846 

intercomponent transfers 1,560 (302,815)

transfers-out (172,292) (275,387)

Legislative transfers (28,883) (130,817)

Legislative Appropriations Lapsed (7,082) (10,452)

ToTal oTher revenues, expenses, 
gains, losses & Transfers

 
$

 
5,245,825 

 
$

 
4,818,249 

change in neT asseTs $ 11,315,508 $ 4,054,294 

net Assets beginning 75,876,790 71,822,496 

neT asseTs, ending $ 87,192,298 $ 75,876,790 
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financial stAteMents
UniVersity oF HoUston CLeAr LAKe - stAteMent oF CAsH FLoWs 
For the year ended August 31, 2011

cash flows from operaTing acTiviTies 2011 2010
Proceeds received from  
students & Customers

 
$ 42,405,229 

 
$ 41,593,384 

Proceeds from Loan Programs 3,639,110 3,399,210 

Proceeds from other revenues 6,496,116 4,150,829 

Payments to suppliers for  
goods & services

 
(15,534,843)

 
(15,379,870)

Payments for employees (62,213,487) (59,742,894)

Payments for Loans Provided (3,776,420) (3,478,521)

Payments for other expenses (10,472,834) (11,724,265)

neT cash provided (used)  
bY operaTing acTiviTies

 
$

 
(39,457,129)

 
$

 
(41,182,127)

cash flows from non-capiTal financing acTiviTies
Proceeds from state Appropriations $ 35,097,082 $ 34,362,008 

Proceeds from gifts 1,047,917 550,315 

Proceeds from endowments 238,355 181,946 

Proceeds from other revenues 21,278,027 8,283,209 

Payments for other Uses (523,992) (158,213)

neT cash provided  
bY non-capiTal financing acTiviTies

 
$

 
57,137,389 

 
$

 
43,219,265 

cash flows from capiTal & relaTed financing acTiviTies 
Proceeds from Capital  
Financing Activities

 
$ 5,214,167 

 
$ 5,355,874 

Payments for Additions to Capital Assets (13,573,474) (3,716,999)

Payments for Capital Lease (396,892) —

Payments of Principal & interest  
on Debt issuance (3,457,881) (3,445,364)

neT cash provided (used) bY capiTal 
& relaTed financing acTiviTies

 
$ (12,214,080)

 
$

 
(1,806,489)

cash flows from invesTing acTiviTies 2011 2010
Proceeds from interest &  
investment income

 
$ 2,008,757 

 
$ 1,461,352 

neT cash provided  
bY invesTing acTiviTies

 
$

 
2,008,757 

 
$

 
1,461,352 

increase (decrease)  
in cash & cash equivalenTs $ 7,474,937 $ 1,692,001 

cash & cash equivalenTs, sepTember 1 $ 18,031,225 $ 16,339,224 

cash & cash equivalenTs, augusT 31 $ 25,506,162 $ 18,031,225 

reconciliaTion of operaTing income (loss) To neT cash
Provided (used) by oPerAting ACtivities

operaTing income (loss) $ (45,705,854) $ (44,622,349)

adjusTmenTs To reconcile operaTing income To neT cash
Provided (used) by oPerAting ACtivities

Amortization & Depreciation $ 4,640,140 $ 4,231,119 

bad Debt expense — 12,771 

ChAnges in Assets & LiAbiLities

(increase) Decrease in receivables & Loans (1,016,214) (1,434,534)

(increase) Decrease in inventories (2,545) 4,286 

(increase) Decrease in other Assets 406,822 (631,344)

(increase) Decrease in Prepaid expenses 142,093 (563,369)

(increase) Decrease in Payables 1,191,260 (512,966)

(increase) Decrease in Deferred income 879,448 2,241,436 

(increase) Decrease in other Liabilities 7,721 92,823 

ToTal adjusTmenTs $ 6,248,725 $ 3,440,222 

neT cash provided bY  
operaTing acTiviTies $ (39,457,129) $ (41,182,127)
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financial stAteMents
UniVersity oF HoUston CLeAr LAKe - MAtrix oF oPerAting exPenses 
For the year ended August 31, 2011

expenses bY naTural classificaTion 2011 2010
Cost of goods sold $ 8,429 $ 19,335 

salaries & Wages 50,134,796 48,535,599 

Payroll related Costs 12,397,313 11,341,081 

Professional Fees & services 5,350,966 4,737,880 

travel 610,834 663,214 

Materials & supplies 4,628,078 4,439,833 

Communication & Utilities 3,090,617 3,395,442 

repairs & Maintenance 1,371,479 1,248,328 

rentals & Leases 548,904 546,341 

Printing & reproduction 362,453 433,255 

Depreciation & Amortization 4,640,140 4,231,119 

interest 313,465 372 

scholarships 8,610,207 8,537,033 

Claims & Losses 158,714 153,385 

other operating expenses 2,031,606 1,751,074 

ToTal operaTing expenses (naTural) $ 94,258,001 $ 90,033,291 

expenses bY funcTional classificaTion 2011 2010
instruction $ 36,686,822 $ 35,935,021 

research 1,746,646 1,279,461 

Public service 194,238 189,118 

Academic support 11,442,014 11,572,562 

student services 3,853,655 3,494,591 

institutional support 15,122,621 14,145,385 

Physical Plant 7,457,039 6,499,800 

scholarships & Fellowships 8,295,509 7,928,209 

Auxiliary enterprises 4,819,317 4,758,025 

Depreciation & Amortization 4,640,140 4,231,119 

ToTal expenses bY  
expendiTure funcTion $ 94,258,001 $ 90,033,291 
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sTaTemenT of asseTs
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financial stAteMents
UniVersity oF HoUston DoWntoWn - stAteMent oF net Assets 
As of August 31, 2011

asseTs 2011 2010
Current Assets

Cash & Cash equivalents $ 37,473,264 $ 33,277,807 

restricted Cash & Cash equivalents (10,314,038) (8,051,112)

Loans & Contracts 444,631 497,668 

Legislative Appropriations 9,174,580 9,905,436 

receivables 28,254,824 24,518,391 

inventories 16,605 17,194 

Deferred Charges 6,120,653 6,804,809 

ToTal currenT asseTs $ 71,170,519 $ 66,970,193 

non-Current Assets

restricted Cash & Cash equivalents $ 353,136 $ (301,132)

Loans & other receivables 24,050,875 21,580,286 

investments 144,670 108,085 

Capital Assets,  
non-Depreciable/non-Amortizable 11,529,717 9,886,822 

Capital Assets, Amortizable/Depreciable 166,016,598 162,276,426 

Accumulated Amortization/Depreciation (81,604,718) (75,000,986)

ToTal non-currenT asseTs $ 120,490,278 $ 118,549,501 

ToTal asseTs $ 191,660,797 $ 185,519,694 

liabiliTies 2011 2010
Current LiAbiLities

Payables $ 9,276,847 $ 8,266,347 

Deferred revenues 21,551,053 19,169,808 

Claims & Judgments Payable 107,278 98,748 

employees’ Compensable Leave 1,118,097 1,077,103 

revenue bonds Payable 4,181,480 4,014,613 

Funds Held for others (472,585) 88,468 

ToTal currenT liabiliTies $ 35,762,170 $ 32,715,087 

non-Current LiAbiLities

Claims & Judgments Payable $ 1,419 $ 3,311 

employees’ Compensable Leave 1,214,673 1,195,266 

revenue bonds Payable 51,931,854 56,113,334 

ToTal non-currenT liabiliTies $ 53,147,946 $ 57,311,911 

ToTal liabiliTies $ 88,910,116 $ 90,026,998 

neT asseTs
invested in Capital Assets,  
net of related Debt $ 42,871,496 $ 40,725,667 

restricted, Debt retirement 2,008,789 2,208,600 

restricted, Capital Projects 81,527 94,574 

restricted, endowment Funds 16,514,319 13,966,321 

restricted, other 4,143,286 4,127,161 

Unrestricted 37,131,264 34,370,373 

ToTal neT asseTs $ 102,750,681 $ 95,492,696 
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financial stAteMents
UniVersity oF HoUston DoWntoWn - stAteMent oF reVenUes, exPenses & CHAnges in net Assets 
For the year ended August 31, 2011

operaTing revenues 2011 2010
tuition & Fees, net of Discounts $ 50,064,996 $ 42,290,963 

sales of goods & services 5,025,016 4,736,075 

Federal revenue 3,430,452 3,250,339 

state grant revenue 7,252,513 5,073,857 

other grants & Contracts 204,455 171,107 

ToTal operaTing revenues $ 65,977,432 $ 55,522,341 

operaTing expenses
instruction $ 38,301,509 $ 36,201,350 

research 1,473,222 1,285,575 

Public service 3,784,092 2,930,191 

Academic support 17,423,558 16,059,333 

student services 4,011,293 4,091,980 

institutional support 15,356,050 17,363,901 

operation & Maintenance of Plant 5,831,035 6,007,834 

scholarships & Fellowships 32,677,308 22,279,589 

Auxiliary enterprises 6,713,483 6,072,504 

Depreciation & Amortization 6,967,492 6,540,886 

ToTal operaTing expenses $ 132,539,042 $ 118,833,143 

operaTing income (loss) $ (66,561,610) $ (63,310,802)

non-operaTing revenues (expenses) 2011 2010
Legislative revenue $ 33,901,987 $ 33,621,034 

gifts 1,357,988 1,265,032 

Federal revenue non operating 31,234,059 27,210,256 

investment income 1,924,613 54,044 

interest expense & Fiscal Changes (2,648,733) (2,811,760)

net increase (Decrease) in Fair Value  
of investments 228,165 1,501,049 

other non-operating revenues (expenses) (1,030,987) (1,314,402)

ToTal non-operaTing revenues 
(expenses)

 
$

 
64,967,092 

 
$

 
59,525,253 

income (loss) before oTher 
revenues, expenses, gains,  
losses & Transfers

 
 
$

 
 

(1,594,518)

 
 
$ (3,785,549)

oTher revenues, expenses, gains, losses & Transfers
Capital Appropriation  
(Higher education Assistance Funds)

 
$ 7,435,238 

 
$ 9,548,995 

Additions to Permanent &  
term endowments 2,152,521 293,184 

intercomponent transfers (71,949) 91,331 

transfers-out (661,719) (604,509)

Legislative Appropriations Lapsed (1,588) (28,637)

ToTal oTher revenues, expenses, 
gains, losses & Transfers

 
$

 
8,852,503 

 
$

 
9,300,364 

change in neT asseTs $ 7,257,985 $ 5,514,815 

net Assets beginning 95,492,696 89,874,941 

restatements — 102,940 

neT asseTs beginning, as resTaTed $ 95,492,696 $ 89,977,881 

neT asseTs, ending $ 102,750,681 $ 95,492,696 
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financial stAteMents
UniVersity oF HoUston DoWntoWn - stAteMent oF CAsH FLoWs 
For the year ended August 31, 2011

cash flows from operaTing acTiviTies 2011 2010
Proceeds received from  
students & Customers

 
$ 54,983,394 

 
$ 44,709,166 

Proceeds from Loan Programs 1,916,256 2,030,610 

Proceeds from other revenues 13,230,143 10,163,515 

Payments to suppliers for  
goods & services

 
(19,434,042)

 
(22,692,863)

Payments for employees (71,330,858) (63,909,122)

Payments for Loans Provided (1,863,219) (1,905,404)

Payments for other expenses (34,831,828) (22,628,170)

neT cash provided (used)  
bY operaTing acTiviTies

 
$

 
(57,330,154)

 
$

 
(54,232,268)

cash flows from non-capiTal financing acTiviTies
Proceeds from state Appropriations $ 34,631,255 $ 33,045,041 

Proceeds from gifts 1,357,988 1,390,573 

Proceeds from endowments (363,602) —

Proceeds of transfers from other Funds 306,492 332,204 

Proceeds from other revenues 29,460,980 27,753,873 

Payments for other Uses (2,098,059) (4,386,422)

neT cash provided  
bY non-capiTal financing acTiviTies

 
$

 
63,295,054 

 
$

 
58,135,269 

cash flows from capiTal & relaTed financing acTiviTies 
Proceeds from Capital  
Financing Activities

 
$ 7,435,238 

 
$ 9,548,995 

Payments for Additions to Capital Assets (5,918,980) (5,105,920)

Payments of Principal & interest  
on Debt issuance (6,469,655) (6,469,902)

neT cash provided (used) bY capiTal 
& relaTed financing acTiviTies

 
$

 
(4,953,397)

 
$

 
(2,026,827)

cash flows from invesTing acTiviTies 2011 2010
Proceeds from interest &  
investment income

 
$

 
1,575,296 

 
$

 
865,351 

neT cash provided  
bY invesTing acTiviTies

 
$

 
1,575,296 

 
$

 
865,351 

increase (decrease)  
in cash & cash equivalenTs $ 2,586,799 $ 2,741,525 

cash & cash equivalenTs, sepTember 1 $ 24,925,563 $ 22,184,038 

cash & cash equivalenTs, augusT 31 $ 27,512,362 $ 24,925,563 

reconciliaTion of operaTing income (loss) To neT cash
Provided (used) by oPerAting ACtivities

operaTing income (loss) $ (66,561,610) $ (63,310,802)

adjusTmenTs To reconcile operaTing income To neT cash
Provided (used) by oPerAting ACtivities

Amortization & Depreciation $ 6,967,492 $ 6,540,886 

ChAnges in Assets & LiAbiLities

(increase) Decrease in receivables & Loans (1,660,221) 307,290 

(increase) Decrease in inventories 589 8,528 

(increase) Decrease in other Assets (25,689) (774)

(increase) Decrease in Prepaid expenses 484,383 (77,492)

(increase) Decrease in Payables 1,023,257 2,139,921 

(increase) Decrease in Deferred income 2,381,245 160,515 

(increase) Decrease in other Liabilities 60,400 (340)

ToTal adjusTmenTs $ 9,231,456 $ 9,078,534 

neT cash provided bY  
operaTing acTiviTies $ (57,330,154) $ (54,232,268)
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financial stAteMents
UniVersity oF HoUston DoWntoWn - MAtrix oF oPerAting exPenses 
For the year ended August 31, 2011

expenses bY naTural classificaTion 2011 2010
Cost of goods sold $ 1,699 $ 4,810 

salaries & Wages 58,073,311 54,537,445 

Payroll related Costs 13,558,631 12,284,310 

Professional Fees & services 6,209,750 7,265,503 

Federal Pass-through expenses 10,000 —

travel 795,419 1,034,323 

Materials & supplies 4,715,793 5,714,656 

Communication & Utilities 2,554,284 3,045,848 

repairs & Maintenance 2,219,233 1,962,647 

rentals & Leases 1,062,391 704,171 

Printing & reproduction 261,770 360,664 

Depreciation & Amortization 6,967,492 6,540,886 

interest 18,835 22,957 

scholarships 32,897,581 22,266,939 

Claims & Losses 197,933 129,475 

other operating expenses 2,994,920 2,958,509 

ToTal operaTing expenses (naTural) $ 132,539,042 $ 118,833,143 

expenses bY funcTional classificaTion 2011 2010
instruction $ 38,301,509 $ 36,201,350 

research 1,473,222 1,285,575 

Public service 3,784,092 2,930,191 

Academic support 17,423,558 16,059,333 

student services 4,011,293 4,091,980 

institutional support 15,356,050 17,363,901 

Physical of Plant 5,831,035 6,007,834 

scholarships & Fellowships 32,677,308 22,279,589 

Auxiliary enterprises 6,713,483 6,072,504 

Depreciation & Amortization 6,967,492 6,540,886 

ToTal expenses bY  
expendiTure funcTion $ 132,539,042 $ 118,833,143 
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sTaTemenT of asseTs

sTaTemenT of revenues, expenses & changes in neT asseTs
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financial stAteMents
UniVersity oF HoUston ViCtoriA - stAteMent oF net Assets 
As of August 31, 2011

asseTs 2011 2010
Current Assets

Cash & Cash equivalents $ 9,112,242 $ 10,831,522 

restricted Cash & Cash equivalents (998,130) 970,558 

Loans & Contracts 1,982,889 1,924,194 

Legislative Appropriations 2,746,507 3,501,865 

receivables 6,104,431 5,963,531 

Deferred Charges 21,542,820 22,280,242 

ToTal currenT asseTs $ 40,490,759 $ 45,471,912 

non-Current Assets

restricted Cash & Cash equivalents $ 440,324 $ (84,863)

Loans & other receivables 17,810,304 20,628,996 

investments 5,609 5,609 

Capital Assets,  
non-Depreciable/non-Amortizable 1,591,043 6,197,417 

Capital Assets, Amortizable/Depreciable 34,606,390 26,207,852 

Accumulated Amortization/Depreciation (13,020,452) (11,562,151)

ToTal non-currenT asseTs $ 41,433,218 $ 41,392,860 

ToTal asseTs $ 81,923,977 $ 86,864,772 

liabiliTies 2011 2010
Current LiAbiLities

Payables $ 3,903,612 $ 5,423,686 

Deferred revenues 9,156,333 8,591,595 

Claims & Judgments Payable 4,640 8,738 

employees’ Compensable Leave 399,312 405,775 

revenue bonds Payable 2,717,048 2,610,908 

Funds Held for others 630,842 687,100 

ToTal currenT liabiliTies $ 16,811,787 $ 17,727,802 

non-Current LiAbiLities

employees’ Compensable Leave $ 433,803 $ 450,290 

revenue bonds Payable 40,239,106 42,956,154 

Claims & Judgments Payable 372 175 

ToTal non-currenT liabiliTies $ 40,673,281 $ 43,406,619 

ToTal liabiliTies $ 57,485,068 $ 61,134,421 

neT asseTs
invested in Capital Assets,  
net of related Debt $ 9,183,922 $ 6,964,644 

restricted, Debt retirement 723,714 921,429 

restricted, Capital Projects 8,964 — 

restricted, endowment Funds 7,208,463 6,875,563 

restricted, other 1,718,231 2,410,010 

Unrestricted 5,595,615 8,558,705 

ToTal neT asseTs $ 24,438,909 $ 25,730,351 
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financial stAteMents
UniVersity oF HoUston ViCtoriA - stAteMent oF reVenUes, exPenses & CHAnges in net Assets 
For the year ended August 31, 2011

operaTing revenues 2011 2010
tuition & Fees, net of Discounts $ 14,987,005 $ 13,656,416 

sales of goods & services 1,749,745 433,682 

Federal revenue 482,875 367,658 

state grant revenue 798,798 1,078,971 

other grants & Contracts 512,741 904,651 

ToTal operaTing revenues $ 18,531,164 $ 16,441,378 

operaTing expenses
instruction $ 18,473,491 $ 16,596,904 

research 162,647 121,830 

Public service 805,108 811,796 

Academic support 5,962,053 5,739,913 

student services 4,463,825 3,919,274 

institutional support 4,917,645 4,473,561 

operation & Maintenance of Plant 1,988,881 1,819,108 

scholarships & Fellowships 3,420,057 2,425,959 

Auxiliary enterprises 2,062,152 11,876 

Depreciation & Amortization 1,653,556 1,212,023 

ToTal operaTing expenses $ 43,909,415 $ 37,132,244 

operaTing income (loss) $ (25,378,251) $ (20,690,866)

non-operaTing revenues (expenses) 2011 2010
Legislative revenue $ 18,922,454 $ 18,843,340 

gifts 310,292 191,316 

Federal revenue non-operating 5,985,184 4,831,108 

investment income 704,955 21,112 

interest expense & Fiscal Changes (2,178,556) (2,039,658)

net increase (Decrease) in Fair Value  
of investments 42,103 539,250 

other non-operating revenues (expenses) (2,167,390) 21,566,052 

ToTal non-operaTing revenues 
(expenses)

 
$ 21,619,042 

 
$ 43,952,520 

income (loss) before oTher 
revenues, expenses, gains,  
losses & Transfers

 
 
$

 
 

(3,759,209)

 
 
$

 
 

23,261,654 

oTher revenues, expenses, gains, losses & Transfers
Capital Appropriation  
(Higher education Assistance Funds)

 
$ 2,393,921 

 
$ 2,335,692 

Additions to Permanent &  
term endowments 195,832 111,958 

intercomponent transfers 28,136 59,548 

transfers-out (147,600) (103,818)

ToTal oTher revenues, expenses, 
gains, losses & Transfers

 
$ 2,470,289 

 
$ 2,403,380 

change in neT asseTs $ (1,288,920) $ 25,665,034 

net Assets beginning 25,730,351 65,317 

restatements (2,522) — 

neT asseTs beginning, as resTaTed $ 25,727,829 $ 65,317 

neT asseTs, ending $ 24,438,909 $ 25,730,351 
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financial stAteMents
UniVersity oF HoUston ViCtoriA - stAteMent oF CAsH FLoWs 
For the year ended August 31, 2011

cash flows from operaTing acTiviTies 2011 2010
Proceeds received from  
students & Customers

 
$ 16,874,800 

 
$ 14,424,325 

Proceeds from Loan Programs 3,704,010 3,066,494 

Proceeds from other revenues 1,954,251 1,206,728 

Payments to suppliers for  
goods & services

 
(13,270,065)

 
(5,455,571)

Payments for employees (25,945,409) (23,305,744)

Payments for Loans Provided (3,762,705) (3,294,466)

Payments for other expenses (4,016,850) (3,317,179)

neT cash provided (used)  
bY operaTing acTiviTies

 
$

 
(24,461,968)

 
$

 
(16,675,413)

cash flows from non-capiTal financing acTiviTies
Proceeds from state Appropriations $ 19,677,813 $ 18,344,082 

Proceeds from gifts 503,474 355,540 

Proceeds from endowments 195,832 111,958 

Proceeds of transfers from other Funds 149,393 158,067 

Proceeds from other revenues 5,985,184 4,831,108 

Payments for other Uses (1,060,485) (1,737,052)

neT cash provided  
bY non-capiTal financing acTiviTies

 
$

 
25,451,211 

 
$

 
22,063,703 

cash flows from capiTal & relaTed financing acTiviTies 
Proceeds from Capital  
Financing Activities

 
$ 5,494,516 

 
$ 10,096,348 

Payments for Additions to Capital Assets (3,989,941) (9,661,924)

Payments of Principal & interest  
on Debt issuance (6,488,823) (4,420,969)

neT cash provided (used) bY capiTal 
& relaTed financing acTiviTies

 
$

 
(4,984,248)

 
$

 
(3,986,545)

cash flows from invesTing acTiviTies 2011 2010
Proceeds from interest &  
investment income

 
$ 841,738 

 
$ 2,927,660 

Payments to Acquire investments (9,514) (311,746)

neT cash provided  
bY invesTing acTiviTies

 
$

 
832,224 

 
$

 
2,615,914 

increase (decrease)  
in cash & cash equivalenTs $ (3,162,781) $ 4,017,659 

cash & cash equivalenTs, sepTember 1 $ 11,717,217 $ 7,699,558 

cash & cash equivalenTs, augusT 31 $ 8,554,436 $ 11,717,217 

reconciliaTion of operaTing income (loss) To neT cash
Provided (used) by oPerAting ACtivities

operaTing income (loss) $ (25,378,251) $ (20,690,866)

adjusTmenTs To reconcile operaTing income To neT cash
Provided (used) by oPerAting ACtivities

Amortization & Depreciation $ 1,653,556 $ 1,212,023 

Classification Differences (58,695) (227,972)

ChAnges in Assets & LiAbiLities

(increase) Decrease in receivables & Loans (212,740) (1,926,633)

(increase) Decrease in other Assets (55,525) (28,756)

(increase) Decrease in Prepaid expenses 737,423 100,607 

(increase) Decrease in Payables (1,714,160) 3,468,757 

(increase) Decrease in Deferred income 564,738 1,112,232 

(increase) Decrease in other Liabilities 1,686 305,195 

ToTal adjusTmenTs $ 916,283 $ 4,015,453 

neT cash provided bY  
operaTing acTiviTies $ (24,461,968) $ (16,675,413)
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financial stAteMents
UniVersity oF HoUston ViCtoriA - MAtrix oF oPerAting exPenses 
For the year ended August 31, 2011

expenses bY naTural classificaTion 2011 2010
salaries & Wages 21,239,017 19,679,473 

Payroll related Costs 5,111,488 4,553,786 

Professional Fees & services 5,702,116 3,771,173 

travel 626,259 662,428 

Materials & supplies 1,576,802 1,218,361 

Communication & Utilities 1,106,882 933,205 

repairs & Maintenance 586,562 490,447 

rentals & Leases 791,006 583,780 

Printing & reproduction 140,629 145,409 

Depreciation & Amortization 1,653,556 1,212,023 

interest 655 474 

scholarships 4,052,280 2,793,642 

Claims & Losses 40,284 41,383 

other operating expenses 1,281,879 1,046,660 

ToTal operaTing expenses (naTural) $ 43,909,415 $ 37,132,244 

expenses bY funcTional classificaTion 2011 2010
instruction $ 18,473,491 $ 16,596,904 

research 162,647 121,830 

Public service 805,108 811,796 

Academic support 5,962,053 5,739,913 

student services 4,463,825 3,919,274 

institutional support 4,917,645 4,473,561 

Physical of Plant 1,988,881 1,819,107 

scholarships & Fellowships 3,420,057 2,425,959 

Auxiliary enterprises 2,062,152 11,877 

Depreciation & Amortization 1,653,556 1,212,023 

ToTal expenses bY  
expendiTure funcTion $ 43,909,415 $ 37,132,244 
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sTaTemenT of asseTs

sTaTemenT of revenues, expenses & changes in neT asseTs

sTaTemenT of cash flows

maTrix of operaTing expenses
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financial stAteMents
UniVersity oF HoUston systeM ADMinistrAtion - stAteMent oF net Assets 
As of August 31, 2011

asseTs 2011 2010
Current Assets

Cash & Cash equivalents $ 49,703,984 $ 53,472,493 

short-term investments 147,505,357 190,143,590 

restricted Cash & Cash equivalents 5,568,162 5,450,188 

Legislative Appropriations 806,984 8,351,319 

receivables 8,164,789 7,368,343 

Deferred Charges 43,008 24 

ToTal currenT asseTs $ 211,792,284 $ 264,785,957 

non-Current Assets

restricted Cash & Cash equivalents $ 2,750,857 $ (819,264)

Loans & other receivables 12,859,881 $ 10,005,368 

investments 611,083,257 $ 552,316,024 

Capital Assets,  
non-Depreciable/non-Amortizable 6,528,754 $ 10,739,805 

Capital Assets, Amortizable/Depreciable 91,483,008 87,375,063 

Accumulated Amortization/Depreciation (33,081,271) $ (24,911,515)

ToTal non-currenT asseTs $ 691,624,486 $ 634,705,481 

ToTal asseTs $ 903,416,770 $ 899,491,438 

liabiliTies 2011 2010
Current LiAbiLities

Payables $ 691,894,188 $ 735,659,547 

Deferred revenues 4,166 25,448 

notes & Loans Payable 42,141,000 10,000,000 

Claims and Judgments Payable 971 892 

employees’ Compensable Leave 384,301 445,797 

Funds Held for others 25,606 20,597 

ToTal currenT liabiliTies $ 734,450,232 $ 746,152,281 

non-Current LiAbiLities

employees’ Compensable Leave $ 417,495 $ 494,703 

Claims & Judgments Payable 4 $ 24

ToTal non-currenT liabiliTies $ 417,499 $ 494,727 

ToTal liabiliTies $ 734,867,731 $ 746,647,008 

neT asseTs
invested in Capital Assets,  
net of related Debt $ 47,073,677 $ 53,024,276 

restricted, Debt retirement 221,393 238,313 

restricted, Capital Projects — 15,330 

restricted, endowment Funds 78,119,031 55,146,559 

restricted, other 6,112,412 6,204,930 

Unrestricted 37,022,526 38,215,022 

ToTal neT asseTs $ 168,549,039 $ 152,844,430 
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financial stAteMents
UniVersity oF HoUston systeM ADMinistrAtion - stAteMent oF reVenUes, exPenses & CHAnges in net Assets 
For the year ended August 31, 2011

operaTing revenues 2011 2010
sales of goods & services 1,087,485 1,048,359 

state grant revenue 48,427 63,741 

ToTal operaTing revenues $ 1,135,912 $ 1,112,100 

operaTing expenses
research 1,079,042 1,086,626 

Public service 76,250 63,497 

Academic support 4,773,128 5,340,053 

student services 189,991 259,611 

institutional support 7,540,919 7,152,006 

operation & Maintenance of Plant 2,191,814 1,099,232 

scholarships & Fellowships 65,827 3,100 

Depreciation & Amortization 8,183,552 8,130,038 

ToTal operaTing expenses $ 24,100,523 $ 23,134,163 

operaTing income (loss) $ (22,964,611) $ (22,022,063)

non-operaTing revenues (expenses) 2011 2010
Legislative revenue $ 4,029,033 $ 4,302,090 

gifts 1,252,096 329,492 

Federal revenue non-operating 1,568,336 461,788 

investment income 6,907,262 879,043 

net increase (Decrease) in Fair Value  
of investments 26,627,058 18,439,989 

other non-operating revenues (expenses) 549,835 25,641,054 

ToTal non-operaTing revenues 
(expenses)

 
$

 
40,933,620 

 
$

 
50,053,456 

income (loss) before oTher 
revenues, expenses, gains,  
losses & Transfers

 
 
$

 
 

17,969,009 

 
 
$

 
 

28,031,393 

oTher revenues, expenses, gains, losses & Transfers
Additions to Permanent &  
term endowments 443,604 7,254 

intercomponent transfers (2,708,004) (3,896,689)

Legislative Appropriations Lapsed — 1,148,705 

ToTal oTher revenues, expenses, 
gains, losses & Transfers

 
$

 
(2,264,400)

 
$

 
(2,740,730)

change in neT asseTs $ 15,704,609 $ 25,290,663 

net Assets beginning 152,844,430 127,553,767 

neT asseTs, ending $ 168,549,039 $ 152,844,430 
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financial stAteMents
UniVersity oF HoUston systeM ADMinistrAtion - stAteMent oF CAsH FLoWs 
For the year ended August 31, 2011

cash flows from operaTing acTiviTies 2011 2010
Proceeds received from  
students & Customers

 
$ 882,398 

 
$ 1,047,107 

Proceeds from other revenues 48,605 183,661 

Payments to suppliers for  
goods & services

 
(2,704,707)

 
(3,154,463)

Payments for employees (9,320,805) (14,667,945)

Payments for other expenses (3,221,440) (2,766,833)

neT cash provided (used)  
bY operaTing acTiviTies

 
$

 
(14,315,949)

 
$

 
(19,358,473)

cash flows from non-capiTal financing acTiviTies
Proceeds from state Appropriations $ 11,573,369 $ 4,132,857 

Proceeds from gifts 1,521,636 1,363,083 

Proceeds from endowments 443,604 7,254 

Proceeds of transfers from other Funds 48,273,831 40,623,155 

Proceeds from other revenues 1,568,335 461,788 

Payments for other Uses (22,954,784) (9,458,456)

neT cash provided  
bY non-capiTal financing acTiviTies

 
$

 
40,425,991 

 
$

 
37,129,681 

cash flows from capiTal & relaTed financing acTiviTies 
Proceeds from other Financing Activities $ 35,801,132 $ 70,336,630 

Payments for Additions to Capital Assets (2,765,911) (42,566,121)

Payments of other Costs of  
Debt issuance (76,872,984) (4,185,336)

neT cash provided (used) bY capiTal 
& relaTed financing acTiviTies

 
$

 
(43,837,763)

 
$

 
23,585,173 

cash flows from invesTing acTiviTies 2011 2010
Proceeds from sales of investments $ 497,425,887 $ 288,150,166 

Proceeds from interest &  
investment income

 
12,702,674 

 
11,691,295 

Payments to Acquire investments (492,481,254) (334,208,534)

neT cash provided  
bY invesTing acTiviTies

 
$ 17,647,307 

 
$

 
(34,367,073)

increase (decrease)  
in cash & cash equivalenTs $ (80,414) $ 6,989,308 

cash & cash equivalenTs, sepTember 1 $ 58,103,417 $ 51,114,109 

cash & cash equivalenTs, augusT 31 $ 58,023,003 $ 58,103,417 

reconciliaTion of operaTing income (loss) To neT cash
Provided (used) by oPerAting ACtivities

operaTing income (loss) $ (22,964,611) $ (22,022,063)

adjusTmenTs To reconcile operaTing income To neT cash
Provided (used) by oPerAting ACtivities

Amortization & Depreciation $ 8,183,552 $ 8,130,038 

ChAnges in Assets & LiAbiLities

(increase) Decrease in receivables & Loans (1,308,150) (5,456,407)

(increase) Decrease in other Assets 178 38 

(increase) Decrease in Prepaid expenses (42,984) —

(increase) Decrease in Payables 1,388,625 24,045 

(increase) Decrease in Deferred income (21,282) 20,594 

(increase) Decrease in other Liabilities 448,723 (54,718)

ToTal adjusTmenTs $ 8,648,662 $ 2,663,590 

neT cash provided bY  
operaTing acTiviTies $ (14,315,949) $ (19,358,473)
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financial stAteMents
UniVersity oF HoUston systeM ADMinistrAtion - MAtrix oF oPerAting exPenses 
For the year ended August 31, 2011

expenses bY naTural classificaTion 2011 2010
salaries & Wages 7,913,065 8,278,271 

Payroll related Costs 1,576,148 1,736,219 

Professional Fees & services 1,997,208 1,466,039 

travel 71,076 126,147 

Materials & supplies 537,654 450,276 

Communication & Utilities 667,892 764,749 

repairs & Maintenance 392,029 366,389 

rentals & Leases 246,657 268,959 

Printing & reproduction 44,962 58,521 

Depreciation & Amortization 8,183,552 8,130,038 

interest 1,579,211 481,726 

scholarships 684,139 670,586 

Claims & Losses 21,892 23,297 

other operating expenses 185,038 312,946 

ToTal operaTing expenses (naTural) $ 24,100,523 $ 23,134,163 

expenses bY funcTional classificaTion 2011 2010
research 1,079,042 1,086,626 

Public service 76,250 63,497 

Academic support 4,773,128 5,340,053 

student services 189,991 259,611 

institutional support 7,540,919 7,152,006 

operation & Maintenance of Plant 2,191,814 1,099,232 

scholarships & Fellowships 65,827 3,100 

Depreciation & Amortization 8,183,552 8,130,038 

ToTal expenses bY  
expendiTure funcTion $ 24,100,523 $ 23,134,163 
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the board of regents of the University of 
Houston system has adopted a set of strategic 
goals that complement the mission statements 
of the system and its component universities. 
Prominent among these goals is the principle 
of student Access and success. As stated in the 
executive summary of the Fiscal year Plan and 
budget, “the UH system will commit to providing 
access to the people of the greater Houston 
region and the state. each university within 
the system will make student success its top 
priority and will hold itself publicly accountable 
for achieving this goal.” in this year ’s Annual 
Financial report we have taken the opportunity 
to share with you a variety of photographs of 
students at each of the universities throughout 
our system. We hope these glimpses of 
student life will help you gain some insight 
into the many ways our students engage and 
participate in an abundance of educational 
opportunities as they progress through their 
academic experience. Additionally we offer 
the following descriptions of our pathways to 
progress toward our commitment to enable 
and encourage success for our students.

universiTY of housTon
goal: UH will have a student profile consistent 
with a nationally competitive public research 
university by creating an environment in which 
student success can be ensured.

 – increasing the enrollment, retention and 
graduation of a diverse student body with 
exceptional academic qualifications is key to 
achieving the University of Houston’s goal of 
becoming a tier-one university.

 – improvements in student success at UH 
have been facilitated by the university ’s 
annual commitment to investing in new 
initiatives that support student enrollment, 
persistence and graduation. these include 
increasing scholarships, expanding course 
offerings, enhancing student support staff 
(e.g., recruiters, advisers), and improving 
the curriculum. Another important factor 
influencing student success is the academic 
preparation of incoming students. As a next 
step in building a highly qualified student 
body, the university has developed more 
competitive admissions standards for 
incoming freshmen that will be implemented 
in fall 2012. in the coming years these new 
standards will translate into lower freshman 
acceptance rates, higher average sAt scores, 
and improved performance and persistence 
among UH undergraduates.

 – in addition to student success at the 
undergraduate level, UH continues to make 
progress at the graduate level, which is also 
a factor in the university ’s tier-one aspirations. 
over the past year, master ’s enrollment 
has increased six percent and doctoral 
enrollment has increased nine percent. 
Consistent long-term growth in graduate 
enrollment will enable UH to achieve its 
goal of a student body that is 25 percent 
graduate, which is consistent with a tier-one 
university profile.

universiTY of housTon – clear laKe
goal: UHCL will provide a supportive student-
centered campus environment focused on 
student access and success.

sTudenT sUCCess: A UH systeM CoMMitMent
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 – UHCL’s fall 2010 enrollment was at the  
highest level in the university ’s history. As  
an upper-level and graduate institution,  
UHCL serves two very different student groups. 
the undergraduate student body consists 
primarily of community college transfer 
students. over 70% of UHCL undergraduates 
have attended one or more community 
colleges prior to enrollment. the graduate 
student body is represented primarily by 
individuals who are working full-time and 
pursuing graduate study on a part-time 
basis in the evening. in fall 2010, Hispanic 
students were 27.6% of UHCL’s undergraduate 
enrollment which qualified UHCL as a Hispanic 
serving institution. Hispanic students now 
comprise 21.8% of UHCL’s total enrollment. 
For fall 2010, international students were  
9.7% of UHCL’s total enrollment. UHCL has 
 in excess of 50,000 alumni.

 – the university is increasingly responsive to 

 – the employers in our community. the 
Clear Lake area is marked by a heavy 
concentration of aerospace firms due 
to the location of nAsA’s Johnson space 
Center. other major local employers of 
UHCL graduates include the petrochemical 
businesses, public school districts, healthcare 
institutions, and a variety of business and 
professional service firms.

 – to address student needs, UH-Clear Lake is 
committed to the recruitment, retention, and 
professional development of faculty as well 
as the proper balance between full-time and 
part-time faculty. UHCL is expanding program 
and course offerings off-campus and online. 
UHCL continues to offer bachelor ’s and 
master ’s degrees at various off-campus 
locations including the UH system centers  
at sugar Land and Cinco ranch, community 

colleges, school districts, and the texas 
Medical Center. A major initiative for UHCL 
during fiscal year 2011 was the start-up of 
the UHCL Pearland campus. From this newly 
constructed facility, which is a partnership 
with the City of Pearland, UHCL offers six 
bachelor ’s and five master ’s degrees from 
the schools of business, education, and 
human sciences and humanities.

universiTY of housTon – downTown
goal: UHD will recruit, advise, retain, and 
educate increasing numbers of students  
who will graduate from our programs, assume 
leadership roles in society, and meet the 
workforce needs of the region and state.

 – expanding access to quality higher education 
has been a central component of the 
university ’s mission since its founding in 
1974. through flexible scheduling of courses, 
innovative use of technology and distance 
learning opportunities, the University provides 
educational opportunities for many who 
might not otherwise be able to pursue a 
college degree. Minority graduates at UHD 
have increased about 121% from Fy2000  
to Fy2010.

 – A team of UHD faculty has developed a 
High-impact Practices implementation Action 
Plan which will serve as a guide for building 
on current best practices at UHD and for 
identifying new high-impact opportunities, all 
with a focus of improving student success. 
High-impact education involves activities 
such as learning communities, supplemental 
instruction, undergraduate research, 
international education, capstone courses, 
and civic engagement. Collectively these 
activities will be part of a coherent strategy for 
improving retention and graduation rates.



68

 – Whether arriving as a first-time-in-college 
freshman or as a transfer student, every UHD 
student benefits from UHD’s commitment to 
keep higher education within the financial 
reach of those on the lower rungs of the 
socio-economic ladder. UHD prides itself on 
being among the best values in texas public 
higher education. During Fy2011 UHD had  
the second lowest tuition and fees of the 
state’s 36 senior-level institutions.

 – the University ’s strategic plan identifies 
helping students succeed as its first priority, 
commits the institution to providing the 
kind of environment that encourages the 
development of students as scholars and 
leaders within their communities, and supports 
students in achieving their full potential 
through excellent academic programs.

universiTY of housTon – vicToria
goal: UHV will optimally shape the size and 
characteristics of the student body to ensure 
diversity and reflect the needs of the global 
leaders of tomorrow, with an emphasis on 
student access and success, and student 
participation through athletics, student 
organizations and academic success initiatives.

 – UHV continues to develop recruitment 
activities, academic advising, on-campus 
student employment, and student 
development activities. in addition to 
adding a wider variety of lower division 
undergraduate courses, UHV continues to 
develop new academic programs and 
expand off-campus and online programs 
to meet the educational needs of both 
traditional and nontraditional students.

 – the university strives for high levels of student 
success and satisfaction, as it enters a 

new era as a destination university. While 
implementing its new, additional mission  
as a destination university, UHV will continue 
its historical mission of serving non-traditional 
students on campus, at the UH system 
centers, and online.

 – the university also considers international 
education to be vital to its mission. in fall 
2010 UHV enrolled 143 international students 
from 31 different countries. the university 
also recognizes the importance of providing 
opportunities for U.s. students to study 
abroad. UHV works with the UH system and 
other universities to establish collaborative 
initiatives abroad. the addition of freshmen 
and sophomores at the UHV campus in fall 
2010 raised Hispanic student enrollment, and 
those students now represent 25.5% of all 
undergraduates at UHV.

 – For several years UHV has been aggressive 
in expanding distance education 
opportunities for students. semester credit 
hours generated by online courses have 
increased approximately 72% from fall 2006 
to fall 2010. off-campus instruction semester 
credit hours (face-to-face and via interactive 
television) increased 83% during the same 
time period. UHV assists in supporting, 
developing, and expanding the UH system 
presence in Fort bend County through UH 
system centers at sugar Land and Cinco 
ranch. UHV remains committed to providing 
high-quality programs and support services  
to students and faculty in Fort bend County.
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